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EXPLANATORY NOTE

On February 14, 2020, Transphorm, Inc. (f/k/a Peninsula Acquisition Corporation) (the “Company”) filed a Current Report on Form 8-K (the
“Original Form 8-K”) with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) disclosing the consummation, on February 12, 2020, of a merger
between Transphorm Technology, Inc. (f/k/a Transphorm, Inc.), a privately held Delaware corporation (“Transphorm Technology”) and Peninsula
Acquisition Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to this transaction (the “Merger”), Transphorm
Technology became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Following the effective time of the Merger, the Company’s predecessor, Peninsula
Acquisition Corporation, adopted Transphorm Technology’s former company name, “Transphorm, Inc.,” and has been continuing the existing business
operations of Transphorm Technology.

The Company is filing this Current Report on Form 8-K/A (the “Form 8-K/A”) to amend Exhibits 99.1 and 99.2 of Item 9.01 of the Original Form
8-K filed on February 14, 2020 to update and refile:

(a) the “Audited financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017” originally filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Original Form
8-K, to add (i) a reference to Note 1 on the consolidated balance sheets relating to the Company's Convertible Preferred Stock which was
retroactively restated as a result of the Merger and (ii) a paragraph that the Company evaluated subsequent events through the date of the filing of
the Original Form 8-K; and

(b) the “Unaudited financial statements as of September 30, 2019 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018” originally filed as
Exhibit 99.2 to the Original Form 8-K to add a reference to Note 1 on the consolidated balance sheets relating to the Company's Convertible
Preferred Stock which was retroactively restated as a result of the Merger.

No other changes have been made to the Original Form 8-K.

References to the exhibits other than Exhibit 99.1 and Exhibit 99.2 in this Form 8-K/A are references to the exhibits filed with the Original Form
8-K. This Form 8-K/A should be read in conjunction with the Original Form 8-K and with our filings with the SEC subsequent to the Original Form 8-K.
The Form 8-K/A speaks as of the filing date of the Original Form 8-K, and we have not updated the disclosures contained therein or herein to reflect any
events which occurred at a date subsequent to the filing of the Original Form 8-K. Defined terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
ascribed to such terms in the Original Form 8-K, except that all references to the “Report” shall now refer to the Original Form 8-K, as amended by this
Form 8-K/A.
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Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.

        (a) Exhibits.

Exhibit Index

Exhibit Number Exhibit Description

2.1 ‡^ Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization, dated February 12, 2020, by and among the Registrant, Peninsula Acquisition Sub, Inc. and
Transphorm Technology

3.1 ^ Certificate of Merger relating to the merger of Peninsula Acquisition Sub, Inc. with and into Transphorm Technology, filed with the Secretary of
State of Delaware on February 12, 2020

3.2 ^ Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation, filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware on February 12, 2020
3.3 ^ Form of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant, to be filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware
3.4 ^ Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant, as currently in effect
4.1 *^ Form of Registration Rights Agreement
4.2 ^ Stockholders Agreement, dated February 13, 2020, by and between the Registrant and KKR
10.1.1 *^ Engagement Letter, dated October 22, 2019, by and between B. Riley FBR, Inc. and Transphorm Technology (“B. Riley Engagement Letter”)
10.1.2 *^ Amendment No. 1 and Consent to B. Riley Engagement Letter, dated November 13, 2019, by and between B. Riley FBR, Inc. and Transphorm

Technology
10.2 *^ Engagement Letter, dated November 14, 2019, by and between Craig-Hallum Capital Group LLC and Transphorm Technology
10.3.1 #^ 2007 Stock Plan
10.3.2 #^ Form of Stock Option Agreement under 2007 Stock Plan
10.4.1 #^ 2015 Equity Incentive Plan
10.4.2 #^ Form of Stock Option Agreement under 2015 Equity Incentive Plan
10.5 #^ 2020 Equity Incentive Plan
10.6 ^ Form of Lock-Up Agreement
10.7 *^ Form of Subscription Agreement
10.8 #^ Offer Letter, dated as of October 13, 2015, by and between Transphorm Technology and Mario Rivas
10.9 #^ Offer Letter, dated as of March 22, 2007, by and between Transphorm Technology and Primit Parikh
10.10 #^ Offer Letter, dated as of October 14, 2015, by and between Transphorm Technology and Cameron McAulay
10.11.1 †^ Award Contract, dated December 13, 2018, by and between Transphorm Technology and Naval Air Warfare Center Aircraft Division
10.11.2 †^ Amendment of Solicitation, dated February 14, 2019, by and between Transphorm Technology and Naval Air Warfare Center Aircraft Division
10.11.3 †^ Amendment of Solicitation, dated June 6, 2019, by and between Transphorm Technology and Naval Air Warfare Center Aircraft Division
10.11.4 ^ Amendment of Solicitation, dated September 12, 2019, by and between Transphorm Technology and Naval Air Warfare Center Aircraft Division
10.11.5 †^ Amendment of Solicitation, dated November 27, 2019, by and between Transphorm Technology and Naval Air Warfare Center Aircraft Division
10.12.1 †^ Joint Venture Agreement, dated as of May 23, 2017, by and among Aizu Fujitsu Semiconductor Limited, Fujitsu Semiconductor Limited,

Transphorm Technology and Transphorm Aizu, Inc.
10.12.2 †^ First Amendment to the Joint Venture Agreement, dated as of September 1, 2018, by and between Aizu Fujitsu Semiconductor

Limited, Fujitsu Semiconductor Limited, Transphorm Technology and Transphorm Aizu, Inc.
10.13.1 †^ Supply Agreement, dated April 4, 2018, between Transphorm Technology and Nexperia
10.13.2 ^ Amendment No. 1 to Supply Agreement, dated February 7, 2020, between Transphorm Technology and Nexperia
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit21agreementandplano.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit31-certificateofmer.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit32-certificateofame.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit33-formofamendedand.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit34-amendedandrestat.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit41-formofregistrati.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit42-stockholdersagre.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit1011-engagementlett.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit1012-amendmentno1an.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit102-engagementlette.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit1031transphormopco2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit1032formofstockopti.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10412015equityincen.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit1042formofstockopti.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit1051-2020equityince.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit106-formoflockxupag.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit107formofsubscripti.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit108offerletterdated.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit109offerletterdated.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit1010offerletterdate.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10111awardcontractd.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10112amendmentofsol.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10113amendmentofsol.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10114amendmentofsol.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10115amendmentofsol.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10121jointventureag.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10122-firstamendmen.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10131supplyagreemen.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10132amendmentno1to.htm


Exhibit Number Exhibit Description
10.14.1 †^ Loan and Security Agreement, dated April 4, 2018, between Transphorm Technology and Nexperia
10.14.2 †^ Amendment No. 1 to Loan and Security Agreement, dated March 21, 2019, between Transphorm Technology and Nexperia
10.14.3 ^ Amendment No. 2 to Loan and Security Agreement, dated February 7, 2020, between Transphorm Technology and Nexperia
10.15.1 †^ Development and License Agreement, dated April 4, 2018, between Transphorm Technology and Nexperia
10.15.2 †^ Amendment No. 1 to Development and License Agreement, dated March 21, 2019, between Transphorm Technology and Nexperia
10.15.3 ^ Amendment No. 2 to Development and License Agreement, dated February 7, 2020, between Transphorm Technology and Nexperia
10.16.1^ Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Lease, dated June 23, 2010, by and between Transphorm Technology and Castilian LLC, for the

premises located at 75 Castilian Drive, Goleta, CA 93117
10.16.2 ^ First Amendment to Lease, dated January 22, 2016, by and between Transphorm Technology and Castilian, LLC, for the premises located at 75

Castilian Drive, Goleta, CA 93117
10.17.1 ^ Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Lease, dated October 14, 2008, by and between Transphorm Technology and Frieslander Holdings,

LLC and Nederlander Holdings, LLC, for the premises located at 111 Castilian Drive, Suite B, Goleta, CA 93117
10.17.2 ^ First Amendment to Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Lease, dated March 17, 2009, by and between Transphorm Technology and

Frieslander Holdings, LLC and Nederlander Holdings, LLC, for the premises located at 111 Castilian Drive, Suite B, Goleta, CA 93117
10.17.3 ^ Second Amendment to Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Lease, dated August 1, 2011, by and between Transphorm Technology and

Frieslander Holdings, LLC and Nederlander Holdings, LLC, for the premises located at 115 Castilian Drive, Suite B, Goleta, CA 93117, formerly
known as 111 Castilian Drive, Suite B, Goleta, CA 93117

10.17.4 ^ Third Amendment to Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Lease, dated November 24, 2015, by and between Transphorm Technology
and Frieslander Holdings, LLC and Nederlander Holdings, LLC, for the premises located at 115 Castilian Drive, Suite B, Goleta, CA 93117,
formerly known as 111 Castilian Drive, Suite B, Goleta, CA 93117

10.18 ^ Form of Director and Officer Indemnification Agreement
10.19 ^ Form of Pre-Merger Indemnity Agreement
10.20.1 *^ Warrant to Purchase Stock, dated November 3, 2010, by and between Transphorm Technology and Silicon Valley Bank (“SVB Warrant”)
10.20.2 ^ Letter Amendment to SVB Warrant, dated May 21, 2015, by and between Transphorm Technology and SVB Financial Group
10.20.3 ^ Amendment to SVB Warrant, dated February 4, 2020, by and between Transphorm Technology and SVB Financial Group
10.21.1 *^ Warrant to Purchase Shares of Series Preferred Stock, dated November 3, 2010, by and between Transphorm Technology and Leader Equity, LLC

(“Leader Warrant”)
10.21.2 ^ Letter Amendment to Leader Warrant, dated May 21, 2015, by and between Transphorm Technology and Leader Ventures, LLC
10.21.3 ^ Amendment to Leader Warrant, dated February 4, 2020, by and between Transphorm Technology and Leader Ventures, LLC
10.22.1 ^ Plain English Warrant Agreement, dated November 3, 2010, by and between Transphorm Technology and TriplePoint Capital, LLC (“First

TriplePoint Warrant”)
10.22.2 ^ Plain English Warrant Agreement, dated December 2, 2010, by and between Transphorm Technology and TriplePoint Capital, LLC (“Second

TriplePoint Warrant”)
10.22.3 ^ Letter Amendment to First TriplePoint Warrant and Second TriplePoint Warrant, dated May 20, 2015, by and between Transphorm Technology

and TriplePoint Capital LLC
10.22.4 ^ Amendment to First TriplePoint Warrant, dated February 10, 2020, by and between Transphorm Technology and TriplePoint Capital LLC
10.22.5 ^ Amendment to Second TriplePoint Warrant, dated February 10, 2020, by and between Transphorm Technology and TriplePoint Capital LLC
10.23.1 *^ Subordinated Convertible Promissory Note, dated October 4, 2017, by and between Transphorm Technology and Yaskawa
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10141loanandsecurit.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10142amendmentno1to.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10143amendmentno2to.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10151developmentand.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10152amendmentno1to.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10153amendmentno2to.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10161-standardindus.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10162firstamendment.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10171standardindust.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10172firstamendment.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10173secondamendmen.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10174thirdamendment.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit1018formofdirectora.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit1019formofpre-merge.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10201-warranttopurc.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10202-letteramendme.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10203-amendmenttosv.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10211-warranttopurc.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10212-letteramendme.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10213-amendmenttole.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10221-plainenglishw.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10222-plainenglishw.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10223-letteramendme.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10224-amendmenttofi.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10225-amendmenttose.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10231-subordinatedc.htm


Exhibit Number Exhibit Description
10.23.2 ^ Waiver, Consent and Amendment Agreement, dated March 16, 2018, by and between Transphorm Technology and Yaskawa
10.23.3 ^ Consent, Guaranty and Amendment Agreement, dated February 10, 2020, by and between Transphorm Technology and Yaskawa
10.24.1 †^ License Agreement dated September 1, 2007, by and between Transphorm Technology and The Regents of the University of California
10.24.2 †^ Eleventh Amendment to License Agreement dated October 29, 2019, by and between Transform Technology and the Regents of the University of

California
10.25 †^ Intracompany License Agreement, dated Oct. 14, 2019, by and between Transphorm Japan and Transphorm Technology
10.26 ^ Letter Agreement, dated February 5, 2020, by and between Transphorm and Marelli Corporation
10.27 ^ Letter Agreement, dated February 3, 2020, by and between Transphorm and Yaskawa
10.28 ^ Indemnification Agreement, dated February 12, 2020, by and between Transphorm Technology and KKR
16.1 ^ Letter from Raich Ende Malter & Co. LLP as to the change in certifying accountant, dated as of February 13, 2020
99.1 Audited financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
99.2 Unaudited financial statements as of September 30, 2019 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018
99.3 ^ Pro forma financial information as of September 30, 2019 and for the nine month period ended, and for the year ended December 31, 2018

‡ Annexes, schedules and/or exhibits have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. The Registrant hereby undertakes to furnish
supplementally a copy of any of the omitted schedules and exhibits to the SEC on a confidential basis upon request.

^ Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 14, 2020.

* Annexes, schedules and/or exhibits have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(a)(5) of Regulation S-K. The Registrant hereby undertakes to furnish
supplementally a copy of any of the omitted schedules and exhibits to the SEC on a confidential basis upon request.

# Indicates management contract or compensatory plan.

† Portions of the exhibit, marked by brackets, have been omitted because the omitted information (i) is not material and (ii) would likely cause competitive
harm if publicly disclosed.
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit10233-consentguaran.htm
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit1028-indemnificatio.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit161-letterfromraich.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1715768/000162828020001551/exhibit993proformafinancia.htm


Signature

        Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

Transphorm, Inc.

Dated: March 25, 2020 By: /s/ Mario Rivas
Mario Rivas
Chief Executive Officer
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Transphorm, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (unaudited)
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Transphorm, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands except share and per share data)

(unaudited)
September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,911  $ 3,069  
Accounts receivable, net, including related parties 325  280  
Inventory 1,140  852  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 860  624  

Total current assets 5,236  4,825  
Property and equipment, net 1,859  2,132  
Goodwill 1,333  1,306  
Intangible assets, net 1,477  1,958  
Other assets 329  278  

Total assets $ 10,234  $ 10,499  

Liabilities, convertible preferred stock and stockholders’ deficit
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 969  $ 1,351  
Development loan 5,000  —  
Revolving credit facility, including accrued interest 10,305  10,346  
Deferred revenue 6,000  3,000  
Unfunded commitment to joint venture 2,015  659  
Accrued payroll and benefits 1,036  1,172  

Total current liabilities 25,325  16,528  
Development loan, net of current portion 8,000  —  
Promissory note 16,065  15,852  

Total liabilities 49,390  32,380  
Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)
Convertible preferred stock (Notes 1 and 9):

Series 1, $0.001 par value; 12,438,704 shares authorized and 12,433,953 shares issued and outstanding as of
September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 39,658  39,658  
Series 2, $0.001 par value; 7,507,699 shares authorized and 7,499,996 shares issued and outstanding as of
September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 30,000  30,000  
Series 3, $0.001 par value; 4,000,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2019
and December 31, 2018 16,000  16,000  

Total convertible preferred stock 85,658  85,658  
Stockholders’ deficit:

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 29,012,034 shares authorized and 4,219,606 shares issued and
outstanding as of September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 4  4  
Additional paid-in capital 22,264  21,829  
Accumulated deficit (146,349)  (128,632)  
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (733)  (740)  

Total stockholders’ deficit (124,814)  (107,539)  

Total liabilities, convertible preferred stock and stockholders’ deficit $ 10,234  $ 10,499  

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)
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Transphorm, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations (unaudited)

(in thousands except share and per share data)
Nine Months Ended September 30,

2019  2018  

Revenue, net $ 2,011  $ 915  
Operating expenses:

Cost of goods sold 4,211  3,336  
Research and development 6,245  6,928  
Sales and marketing 2,098  2,739  
General and administrative 4,015  4,129  

Total operating expenses 16,569  17,132  

Loss from operations (14,558)  (16,217)  
Interest expense 567  536  
Loss in joint venture 3,004  1,185  
Changes in fair value of promissory notes 101  821  
Other income, net (513)  (158)  

Loss before tax expense (17,717)  (18,601)  
Tax expense —  —  

Net loss $ (17,717)  $ (18,601)  

Loss per share - basic and diluted $ (4.20)  $ (4.41)  
Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic and diluted 4,219,606  4,219,606  

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)
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Transphorm, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss (unaudited)

(in thousands)
Nine Months Ended September 30,

2019  2018  

Net loss $ (17,717)  $ (18,601)  
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments 7  (76)  

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 7  (76)  

Comprehensive loss $ (17,710)  $ (18,677)  

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)
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Transphorm, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficit (unaudited)

(in thousands except share data)

Common Stock
Additional

Paid-in Capital
Accumulated

Deficit

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
(Loss) Income

Stockholders’
DeficitNumber of Shares Amount

Balance at January 1, 2018 4,219,606  $ 4  $ 21,244  $ (102,834)  $ (742)  $ (82,328)  
Stock-based compensation —  —  455  —  —  455  
Other comprehensive loss —  —  —  —  (76)  (76)  
Net loss —  —  —  (18,601)  —  (18,601)  

Balance at September 30, 2018 4,219,606  $ 4  $ 21,699  $ (121,435)  $ (818)  (100,550)  

Balance at January 1, 2019 4,219,606  $ 4  $ 21,829  $ (128,632)  $ (740)  $ (107,539)  
Stock-based compensation —  —  435  —  —  435  
Other comprehensive income —  —  —  —  7  7  
Net loss —  —  —  (17,717)  —  (17,717)  

Balance at September 30, 2019 4,219,606  $ 4  $ 22,264  $ (146,349)  $ (733)  $ (124,814)  

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)
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Transphorm, Inc.
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited)

(in thousands)

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2019  2018  
Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss $ (17,717)  $ (18,601)  
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Capitalized interest cost 455  210  
Depreciation and amortization 920  1,057  
Stock-based compensation 435  455  
Changes in fair value of promissory notes 101  821  
Loss on disposal of property and equipment —  75  
Loss in joint venture 3,004  1,185  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (45)  (294)  
Inventory (288)  (704)  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (236)  547  
Other assets (51)  17  
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (766)  (909)  
Deferred revenue 3,000  —  
Accrued payroll and benefits (136)  (169)  

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (11,324)  (16,310)  
Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property and equipment (155)  (46)  
Investment in joint venture (1,696)  (1,548)  

Net cash used in investing activities (1,851)  (1,594)  
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of Series 3 convertible preferred stock —  16,000  
Proceeds from issuance of revolving credit facility —  7,000  
Proceeds from issuance of development loans 13,000  —  
Principal payments on debt —  (13,000)  

Net cash provided by financing activities 13,000  10,000  
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalent 17  (95)  

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (158)  (7,999)  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 3,069  9,973  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 2,911  $ 1,974  

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest $ 496  $ 328  

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)
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Transphorm, Inc.
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)

Note 1 - Business and Basis of Presentation

        Transphorm, Inc. develops gallium nitride (“GaN”) semiconductor components used in power conversion. Transphorm was incorporated in the state of
Delaware on February 22, 2007. Transphorm, Inc’s activities to date have been primarily performing research and development, establishing manufacturing
infrastructure, market sampling, hiring personnel, and raising capital to support and expand these activities. Transphorm, Inc. is headquartered in Goleta,
California. Transphorm Japan, Inc. was established in February 2014 to increase Transphorm, Inc’s production capacity and establish a direct presence in
Asian markets. Transphorm, Inc., Transphorm Japan Inc. and Transphorm Aizu, Inc. are collectively referred to “Transphorm,” the “Company” or “our” in
these notes.

        In management’s opinion, the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of Transphorm reflect all adjustments of a normal and
recurring nature that are necessary for a fair presentation of the results for the interim period ended September 30, 2019, but are not necessarily indicative
of the results that will be reported for the entire year or any other interim period. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in annual
financial statements prepared in accordance with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) have been
condensed or omitted. The aforementioned unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with GAAP and in
accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The interim information
should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company’s Form 8-K filed on February 13, 2020. The
balance sheet as of December 31, 2018 is derived from audited financial statements.

        The preparation of interim unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Material estimates subject to change include, among other
items, the determination of allowance for loan and lease losses and allowance for off-balance sheet items, other-than-temporary impairment, securities
valuations, the fair value of other assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination and income taxes. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Stock Conversion

        On February 12, 2020, The Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization (the “Merger Agreement”). See Note 15 -
Subsequent Events for more information. As a result of the Merger, the Company’s stock immediately prior to the closing of the Merger included herein
was retroactively restated for the effect of the stock conversion as follows:

• Series 1 convertible preferred stock: 51,700,000 shares authorized and 51,680,254 shares issued and outstanding were converted into
12,438,704 shares authorized and 12,433,953 shares issued and outstanding, respectively;

• Series 2 convertible preferred stock: 38,800,000 shares authorized and 38,760,190 shares issued and outstanding were converted into
7,507,699 shares authorized and 7,499,996 shares issued and outstanding, respectively;

• Series 3 convertible preferred stock: 31,850,304 shares authorized, issued and outstanding were converted into 4,000,000 shares authorized,
issued and outstanding; and
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• Common stock: 350,000,000 shares authorized and 50,905,160 shares issued and outstanding were converted into 29,012,034 shares
authorized and 4,219,606 shares issued and outstanding, respectively.

        The stock conversion did not change the par value of the Company’s stock. Stock price per share was adjusted in proportion to the decrease in shares
to maintain equal value. In addition, stock options and stock warrants are reduced at 1 for 12.0639594 rate pursuant to the Merger Agreement and the
reduced stock options and stock warrants were retroactively restated for the effect of the stock conversion.

Going Concern

        The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As
included in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements, the Company has generated recurring losses from operations and has an
accumulated deficit. These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for the next twelve months from the
issuance of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

        Management plans to raise additional working capital to fund operations through the issuance of stock to investors, license of intellectual property
and/or issuance of notes payable. However, there is no assurance that the Company will be successful in raising additional capital.

        The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is dependent on its ability to raise adequate capital to fund operating losses until it is able to
generate liquidity from its business operations. To the extent sufficient financing is not available, the Company may not be able to, or may be delayed in,
developing its offerings and meeting its obligations. The Company will continue to evaluate its projected expenditures relative to its available cash and to
evaluate financing alternatives in order to satisfy its working capital and other cash requirements. The accompanying condensed consolidated financial
statements do not reflect any adjustments that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards Adopted

        In July 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-11, Earnings Per Shares (Topic 260), Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity (Topic 480) and Derivatives
and Hedging (Topic 815). ASU 2017-11 changes the classification analysis of certain equity-linked financial instruments, such as warrants and embedded
conversion features, such that a down round feature is disregarded when assessing whether the instrument is indexed to an entity’s own stock under
Subtopic 815-40. As a result, a down round feature — by itself — no longer requires an instrument to be remeasured at fair value through earnings each
period, although all other aspects of the indexation guidance under Subtopic 815-40 continue to apply. ASU 2017-11 is effective for fiscal years, and
interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company adopted this standard effective January 1, 2018. The adoption
of ASU 2017-11did not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statement.

        Revenue - In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Boards (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2014- 09, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The ASU and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced most existing revenue recognition guidance in
GAAP. The ASU also required expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers. The Company adopted the new standard effective January 1, 2018, the first day of the Company’s fiscal year using the modified
retrospective approach.

        Stock Compensation - In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-09, Compensation -Stock Compensation (Topic 718) (“ASU 2017-09”), which
clarifies when changes to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award must be accounted for as modifications. ASU 2017-09 is effective for the
Company’s 2018 fiscal year, although early adoption is permitted. The Company adopted this standard effective January 1, 2018. The adoption of ASU
2017-09 did not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statement.
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        Goodwill Impairment - In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for
Goodwill Impairment (“ASU 2017-04”), which eliminates step two from the goodwill impairment test. Under the amendments in ASU 2017-04, an entity
should recognize an impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value; however, the loss recognized
should not exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. ASU 2017-04 is effective for the Company’s 2022 fiscal year on a
prospective basis, and earlier adoption is permitted for goodwill impairment tests performed on testing dates after January 1, 2017. The Company this
standards as of January 1, 2018. The adoption of ASU 2017-04 did not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statement.

        Stock Compensation - In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718) (“ASU 2016-09”), which
simplified certain aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions, including income taxes, classification of awards and classification in the
statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-09 will be effective for the Company beginning in fiscal year 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The Company adopted
this standard as of January 1, 2018. The adoption of ASU 2016-09 did not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements and prior periods
were not restated.

        Descriptions of our significant accounting policies are included in Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in the notes to consolidated
financial statements on Form 8-K. The Company is currently evaluating impacts of other recently issued accounting standards on the consolidated financial
statements.

Note 2 - Nexperia Arrangement

Nexperia Transaction

        On April 4, 2018, the Company entered into a multi-element commercial arrangement with Nexperia to obtain financing in exchange for sale of equity
instruments and performing certain technology and product development activities for Nexperia (collectively, the “Collaboration Arrangement”). Nexperia
specializes in designing, manufacturing and selling a broad range of small discrete semiconductor devices that utilize components such as those
manufactured by the Company. Financing under the Collaboration Arrangement is comprised of the following elements:

• $16 million Series 3 preferred stock issuance

• $9 million license fee for transfer of the Gen 3 manufacturing process

• $5 million development loan maturing March 31, 2020 intended to pre-fund the Gen 4 (Tranche A) technology development (the “Tranche A
Loan”)

• $8 million development loan maturing March 31, 2021 intended to pre-fund the Gen 5 (Tranche B), 1200V (Tranche B1) technology
development (the “Tranche B Loan”)

• $2 million development loan maturing March 31, 2021 intended to pre-fund the 1200V technology development (the “Tranche B-1 Loan”)
(together with the Tranche A and Tranche B Loans, the “Development Loans”)

• $10 million revolving loan (the “Tranche C Loan”)
        The company has to use the funds to operate the business in a manner consistent with or reasonably related to those business activities as carried out
on or prior to the Effective Date. In addition to the multiple elements outlined above, the Company and Nexperia entered into a Supply Agreement
requiring that the Company be Nexperia’s primary supplier of specified components until June 30, 2020 on a best effort basis. By entering into this
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Collaboration Arrangement, Nexperia will gain access to technology that allows for production of high power semiconductors for use in electric vehicles.

        Further, Nexperia will obtain an exclusive license and market access to automotive customers outside of Japan and a sole license (non-exclusive of the
Company), as well as market access, to customers in other segments of the power market. Nexperia has a lien on certain US patents not relating to
MOCVD or epiwafer technology, per the agreement.

        On March 31, 2019, the Company executed Amendment No. 1 to the Loan and Security Agreement (the “First Amendment to the LSA” or the
“Amendment”). Under this First Amendment to the LSA the Tranche B Loan is bifurcated into the following two separate sub-tranches:

• $8 million development loan intended to pre-fund the Gen 5 (Tranche B), 1200V (Tranche B1) (Ron/2) technology development (the
“Tranche B Loan”)

• $2 million development loan intended to pre-fund the 1200V technology development (the “Tranche B-1 Loan” and, together with the
Tranche B Loan, the “Tranche B Loans”)

        All other terms set forth under the original agreement remain unchanged and in full effect. The Tranche A and Tranche B Loans represent pre-funding
for Gen 4 (Tranche A), Gen 5 (Tranche B), 1200V (Tranche B1) and 1200V technology development for Nexperia. The specific development activities and
associated performance milestones are contained within a Statement of Work (“SoW”) between the Company and Nexperia. The SoW may be modified
from time to time based upon mutual business interests. This promise to perform the technology development is a good/service provided to a customer in
exchange for consideration in the form of the technology development license fees that offset the Tranche A and Tranche B Loans outstanding. The
Development Loans are within the scope of ASC 730-20, Research & Development Arrangements and are recognized as a liability equal to the cash
proceeds received.

        On December 2018, the Company received $3 million, 1st of the three tranches in relation to the Gen 3 manufacturing process, and recorded it in
deferred revenue as of December 31, 2018. On April 2019, the Company received additional $3 million, 2nd of the three tranches in relation to the Gen 3
manufacturing process, and recorded in deferred revenue as of September 30, 2019. The Company will recognize this revenue upon the completion and
mutual sign off between Nexperia and the Company.

        On January 2019, the Company received $5 million development loan maturing March 31, 2020 intended to pre-fund the Gen 4 (Tranche A)
technology development (the Tranche A Loan).

        On June and July 2019, the Company received $8 million development loan maturing March 31, 2021 intended to pre-fund the Gen 5 (Tranche B),
1200V (Tranche B1) (Ron/2) technology development (the Tranche B Loan)

        The Tranche C revolving loan of $10 million was received during the year ended December 31, 2018. See Note 6 - Debts for more information.
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Note 3 - Fair Value Measurements

        FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements as
follows:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs (other than quoted prices included within Level 1) that are observable, unadjusted quoted prices  in markets that are not active, or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data of substantially the full term of the related assets or liabilities.

Level 3 - Inputs reflect management’s best estimate of what market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability. Consideration is given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and the risk inherent in the
inputs to the model.

        The categorization of a financial instrument within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. The following table summarizes the Company’s liabilities measured at fair value as of September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, by level
within the fair value hierarchy (in thousands):

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
September 30, 2019
Promissory note $ —  $ —  $ 16,065  

December 31, 2018
Promissory note $ —  $ —  $ 15,852  

        The following table includes the changes in fair value of the promissory notes which are Level 3 on the fair value hierarchy (in thousands):

2019  

Fair value at January 1 $ 15,852  
Interest expense accrued 112  
Decrease in fair value 101  

Fair value at September 30 $ 16,065  

2018  

Fair value at January 1 $ 27,756  
Interest expense accrued 364  
Principal and interest expense paid (13,328)  
Increase in fair value 1,060  

Fair value at December 31 $ 15,852  

        There were no changes to our valuation techniques used to measure assets and liability fair values during the nine months ended September 30, 2019.
The valuation techniques for the items in the table above are as follows:

        Level 3 borrowing, which consist of promissory note, are measured and reported at fair value using a Monte Carlo simulation valuation model. The
models can include assumptions related to the value of the notes that are based on the estimated timing and amounts of future rounds of financing,
including the estimated timing of a change in control of the Company, and estimated market interest rates, which represent significant unobservable inputs.
Assumptions used are 1) the Company is worth today what it can generate in future cash to the Company, 2) cash received today is more than an equal
amount of cash received in the future; and 3) future cash flows can be reasonably estimated.
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Note 4 - Concentration of Credit Risk and Significant Customers

        The Company manages its credit risk associated with exposure to distributors and direct customers on outstanding accounts receivable through the
application of credit approvals and other monitoring procedures. Credit sales, which are mainly on credit terms of 30 to 60 days, are only made to
customers who meet the Company's credit standards, while sales to new customers or customers with low credit ratings are usually made on an advance
payment basis. The Company closely monitors the aging of accounts receivable from its distributors and direct customers, and regularly reviews their
financial positions, where available. The Company has not experienced any significant bad debt write-offs of accounts receivable for the nine months
ended September 30, 2019 and 2018.

        Significant customers are those that represent 10% or more of revenue or accounts receivable and are set forth in the following:

Revenue For the Nine Months Ended September
30, Accounts Receivable As of

2019 2018 September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

Customer A 51.1%  *  *  *  
Customer B 14.6%  *  57.6%  19.3%  
Customer C *  57.2%  *  22.7  
Customer D *  11.8%  *  43.7%  
Customer E *  17.1%  *  *  

* Less than 10% of total

        Customer A is US Government, and Customer B and D are related parties. See Note 13 - Related Party Transactions for more information.

Note 5 - Inventory

        Inventory consists of the following as of September 30, 2019 and 2018 (in thousands):

As of

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

Raw materials $ 293  $ 258  
Work in process 248  270  
Finished goods 599  324  

Total $ 1,140  $ 852  

        For the nine months ended September 30, 2019, no inventory write-off was recorded.

Note 6 - Debts

Revolving Credit Facility

        On April 4, 2018, the Company entered into the Loan and Security Agreement with Nexperia comprised of a $10 million revolving loan (the “Tranche
C Loan”) maturing at the earlier of (i) the third anniversary of April 3, 2018, and (ii) the date a Change of Control (as defined in the Loan and Security
Agreement) occurs. Interest payable by the Company will accrue on the outstanding principal amount of the loans during such period at a rate of 6% per
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annum. The credit facility is secured against certain of our US patents not relating to MOVCD or epiwafer technology.

        The Nexperia debt is recorded based on principal $10.0 million and accrued interest (6% interest per annum). The Company recorded interest expense
of $455 thousand and paid interest expense of $496 thousand for the nine months ended September 30, 2019, resulting in a total balance of $10.3 million as
of September 30, 2019.

Promissory Note 

        The Company’s promissory note obligations at September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 consists of the following (in thousands):

Stated Value at

Interest Rate Due Date September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

Yaskawa Note 1.0%  September 2022 $ 15,298  $ 15,186  

        Pursuant to ASC 825-10-15-4, the Company elected to apply the fair value option for the Yaskawa promissory note. As of September 30, 2019 and
December 31, 2018, the Company determined the fair value for each note, as compared to the face value, including accrued interest, as follows (in
thousands):

Fair Value at

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

Yaskawa Note $ 16,065  $ 15,852  

        The changes in fair value of $101 thousand and $1.1 million were recorded in changes in fair value of promissory notes in the accompanying
condensed consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss for the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and the year ended December 31,
2018, respectively.

        In connection with its promissory note obligation, the Company recorded interest expense of $112 thousand and $326 thousand for the nine months
ended September 30, 2019 and 2018. In accordance with the terms of the promissory note, interest is added to the principal balance and is reflected in the
carrying value on the condensed consolidated balance sheet. As of September 30, 2019, accrued interest on the promissory note was $298 thousand.

        As of September 30, 2019, the scheduled maturity on the revolving credit facility and promissory note, and development loans (Note 2 - Nexperia
Arrangement) was as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31, Amount

2019  $ 10,305  
2020  5,000  
2021  8,000  
2022  15,748  

Total $ 39,053  

Note 7 - Investment in Aizu Fujitsu Semiconductor Wafer Solution Limited (“AFSW”)

        The Company has 49% interest in AFSW and a joint venture agreement with the 51% owner. AFSW manufactures semiconductor products
exclusively for its owners under manufacturing agreements at prices estimated to cover the cost of production. AFSW was determined to be a variable
interest entity (“VIE”) as the equity at risk was not believed to be sufficient. AFSW depends on its owners for any additional cash. The Company
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extended $1.7 million and $1.9 million to AFSW to fund their operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and for the year ended
December 31, 2018. The Company’s known maximum exposure to loss approximated the carrying value of our investment balance, which included the
financing. Potential future losses could be higher than the carrying amount of the Company’s investment, as they are liable, along with the other owner, for
other future operating costs or obligations of AFSW. In addition, because Transphorm is currently committed to purchasing our GaN wafers and
production-related services, at pre-agreed pricing based upon our second generation products, they may be required to purchase products at a higher cost
for its newer generation products. Unfunded commitment to AFSW was $2.0 million and $0.7 million as of September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
respectively.

        The Company’ investment activities in AFSW for the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and for the year ended December 31, 2018 are
summarized below (in thousands):

For the Nine Months
Ended September 30,

2019  
For the Year Ended
December 31, 2018  

Beginning balance $ (659)  $ (98)  
Investment 1,696  1,852  
Loss (3,004)  (2,404)  
Effect of exchange rate change (48)  (9)  

Ending balance $ (2,015)  $ (659)  

        Summarized financial information (unaudited) of AFSW for the period indicated are as follows (in thousands):

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

Current assets $ 2,864  $ 4,096  
Long-term assets 4,838  4,194  
Current liabilities 547  961  
Due to controlling owner 16,608  12,031  
Due to Transphorm 4,569  2,960  

Net deficit $ (14,022)  $ (7,662)  

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2019  2018  

Sales $ 8,864  $ 18,815  
Gross loss $ (4,002)  $ (598)  
Net loss $ (6,130)  $ (2,419)  

Note 8 - Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

        The Company leases office and fabrication space in Goleta and San Jose, California under noncancelable operating lease agreements with terms
through 2022. The terms of certain leases provide for escalating rental payments through the term of the lease. The Company recognizes rent expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term and accrues for rent expense incurred but not paid.
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        As of September 30, 2019, future minimum operating lease commitments were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31, Amount

2019  $ 177  
2020  703  
2021  489  
2022  163  

Total $ 1,532  

        The Company recorded rent expense, net of rental income, which includes common area maintenance fees in addition to the base rent of $672
thousand for the nine months ended September 30, 2019. Rental income from noncancelable sublease for the nine months ended September 30, 2019 was
$136 thousand. As of September 30, 2019, the future minimum rental payments to be received under the noncancelable sublease is $262 thousand through
February 2021.  

Contingencies

        During the ordinary course of business, the Company may become a party to legal proceedings incidental to its business. The Company accrues
contingent liabilities when it is probable that future expenditures will be made and such expenditures can be reasonably estimable. Legal cost is expensed
as incurred. The company is not aware of any material legal claims or assessments, although the results of litigation and claims are inherently
unpredictable, management believes there was not at least a reasonable possibility that the Company had incurred a material loss with respect to such loss
contingencies as of September 30, 2019 and through date of this report.

Indemnification

        The Company from time to time enters into types of contracts that contingently require the Company to indemnify parties against third-party claims.
 Historically, the Company has not been required to make payments under these obligations, and no liabilities have been recorded for these obligations in
the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Note 9 - Convertible Preferred Stock

As of September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Company’s convertible preferred stock consists of the following (in thousands, except
share and per share amounts):

September 30, 2019 Authorized Shares Outstanding Shares Carrying Value Par Value per Share Preference Value

Series 1 12,438,704  12,433,953  $ 39,658  $ 0.001  $ 40,000  
Series 2 7,507,699  7,499,996  30,000  $ 0.001  30,000  
Series 3 4,000,000  4,000,000  16,000  $ 0.001  16,000  

Total 23,946,403  23,933,949  $ 85,658  $ 86,000  

December 31, 2018 Authorized Shares Outstanding Shares Carrying Value Par Value per Share Preference Value

Series 1 12,438,704  12,433,953  $ 39,658  $ 0.001  $ 40,000  
Series 2 7,507,699  7,499,996  30,000  $ 0.001  30,000  
Series 3 4,000,000  4,000,000  16,000  $ 0.001  16,000  

Total 23,946,403  23,933,949  $ 85,658  $ 86,000  

        
Series 1 and 2 Preferred Stock

        KKR Phorm Investors L.P. (KKR) purchased 12,433,953 shares of Series 1 preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share, at a per share price of $3.217
for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $40 million. KKR and other investors with a small percentage (~0.02%) purchased 7,499,996 shares of
Series 2 preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share, at a per share price of $4.00 for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $30 million.

        Series 3 Preferred Stock

        On March 26, 2018, the Company entered into a stock purchase agreement and related contracts in order to effectuate the issuance of its Series 3
preferred stock to Nexperia. Pursuant to the terms of the stock purchase agreement, Nexperia purchased 4,000,000 shares of Series 3 preferred stock, par
value $0.001 per share, at a per share price of $4.00, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $16 million equating to a total ownership stake of
approximately 9.9%. The Company has reserved shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, for issuance upon conversion of the Series 3
preferred stock (the conversion shares). The Series 3 preferred stock issued is substantially pari passu with the Company’s Series 1 and Series 2 preferred
stock previously issued to KKR with a small percentage (~0.02%) issued to other investors.

        Each share of Series 1, Series 2 and Series 3 preferred stock are convertible at the option of the holder into such number of shares of common stock as
is determined by dividing the original issue price (OIP) of the Series 1, Series 2 and Series 3 preferred stock by the conversion price in effect at the time of
the conversion. The conversion price of the Series 1, Series 2 and Series 3 preferred stock is subject to adjustment for certain events. Each share of Series 1,
Series 2 and Series 3 preferred stock automatically converts into common stock immediately upon the closing of an underwritten public offering of the
Company’s common stock in which the aggregate net proceeds are at least $40 million and the offering price per share is not less than 1.5 times the OIP of
the Series 1, Series 2 and Series 3 preferred stock (a Qualifying Public Offering).
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Noted 10 - Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock

        At September 30, 2019, the Company has reserved shares of common stock for future issuance as follows:

Conversion of convertible preferred stock 23,946,403  
Stock option plans 4,025,218  
Common stock warrants 15,461  

Total 27,987,082  

Common Stock Warrants

        At September 30, 2019, the following warrants to purchase common stock were outstanding:

Number of Shares Exercise Price Expiration Date

6,046  $34.740  November 2020
6,046  $34.740  February 2025
3,369  $54.410  February 2025

15,461  

Note 11 - Stock Option Plans

        The following table summarizes stock option activity and related information for the nine months ended September 30, 2019:

Number of Shares
Available for Grant

Number of Options
Outstanding

Weighted Average
Exercise Price per

Share

Weighted Average
Remaining

Contractual Term 
(in Years)

Aggregate Intrinsic
Value

Balance at January 1, 2019 1,648,039  2,377,180  $ 4.79  7.46  $ —  
Options granted (183,109)  183,109  $ 3.14  
Options canceled 106,477  (106,477)  $ 4.34  

Balance at September 30, 2019 1,571,407  2,453,812  $ 4.69  7.06  $ —  

Exercisable at September 30, 2019 1,984,257  $ 4.95  6.85  $ —  

        The assumptions used to value options granted to employees during nine months ended September 30, 2019 were as follows:

Weighted average expected life (in years) 5.46  
Risk-free interest rate 1.56% - 1.94%  
Expected volatility 39.4% - 39.8%  
Weighted average grant date fair value $1.09  
Dividend yield —%  

        As of September 30, 2019, there was $573 thousand of unrecognized stock-based compensation cost related to stock options granted to employees
under the 2007 Plan and the 2015 Plan. The unrecognized compensation cost is expected to be recognized over an estimated weighted average amortization
period of 1.34 years.
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        The accompanying condensed consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss includes stock-based compensation expense as follows (in
thousands):

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2019 2018

Cost of revenue $ 44  $ 31  
Research and development 146  142  
Sales and marketing 24  36  
General and administrative 221  246  

Total $ 435  $ 455  

Note 12 - Loss Per Share

        For the nine months ended September 30, 2019, there were 26,403,222 shares, consisting of 23,933,949 convertible preferred stocks, 15,461 stock
warrants and 2,453,812 stock options, that were not included in the computation of diluted loss per share because their effect would be anti-dilutive. For the
nine months ended September 30, 2018, there were 26,359,893 shares, consisting of 23,933,949 convertible preferred stocks, 26,157 stock warrants and
2,399,787 stock options, that were not included in the computation of diluted loss per share because their effect would be anti-dilutive.

Note 13 - Related Party Transactions

        During the nine months ended September 30, 2019, the Company entered into the following related party transactions:

• Recorded $477 thousand in cost of goods sold for services, incurred expenses of $320 thousand for research and development activities, and
incurred $21 thousand for employees and their related benefits seconded from the joint venture with AFSW;

• Sold $216 thousand of products to non-controlling common stockholders of the Company, incurred $21 thousand for employees and their
related benefits seconded from a non-controlling common stockholder of the Company and $100 thousand of license maintenance fee from a
non-controlling common stockholder; and

• Recorded $16.0 million in unearned revenue for sales, incurred of $50 thousand of license maintenance fee and sold $293 thousand of
products to a convertible preferred stockholder of the Company.

        As of September 30, 2019, total accounts receivable from related parties was $4.8 million, consisting of $4.6 million from the joint venture with
AFSW, $42 thousand from non-controlling common stockholders of the Company and$187 thousand from a convertible preferred stockholder and
noteholder of the Company. As of September 30, 2019, total accounts payable to related parties was $3 thousand to a non-controlling common stockholder
of the Company.

        During the nine months ended September 30, 2018, the Company entered into the following related party transactions:

• Recorded $640 thousand in cost of goods sold for services, incurred expenses of $466 thousand for research and development activities, and
incurred $138 thousand for employees and their related benefits seconded from the Joint Venture with AFSW;

• Sold $134 thousand of products to non-controlling common stockholders of the Company, incurred $36 thousand for employees and their
related benefits seconded to a non-controlling common stockholder of the Company and incurred $200 thousand of license maintenance fee
from a non-controlling common stockholder ;

• Sold $27 thousand of products to a noncontrolling common stockholder and noteholder of the Company; and

• Sold $64 thousand of products to a convertible preferred stock holder and noteholder of the company.

        The services provided to the Company were recorded as research and development expenses and the sale of product samples were recorded as an
offset to research and development expenses.
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Note 14 - Subsequent Events

Nexperia Arrangement 

        In October 2019, the Company received remaining $3 million, the last of the three tranches, $9 million in total, in relation to the Gen 3 manufacturing
process from Nexperia, and recorded it in deferred revenue. On December 2019, the Company received $2 million development loan maturing March 31,
2021 intended to pre-fund the 1200V technology development (the Tranche B-1 Loan). See Note 2 - Nexperia Arrangement.

Merger Agreement

        On February 12, 2020, Peninsula Acquisition Corporation, Acquisition Sub and Transphorm Technology entered into an Agreement and Plan of
Merger and Reorganization (the “Merger Agreement”). Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, on February 12, 2020, Acquisition Sub merged
with and into Transphorm Technology, with Transphorm Technology continuing as the surviving corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Peninsula
Acquisition Corporation. The Merger was treated as a recapitalization and reverse acquisition for financial reporting purposes. Transphorm Technology is
considered the acquirer for accounting purposes. Immediately after completion of the merger, Peninsula Acquisition Corporation adopted Transphorm
Technology’s former company name, Transphorm, Inc. as its company name.

Private Placement

        Following the Merger, the Company sold 5,365,000 shares of common stock pursuant to an initial closing of a private placement offering for up to
12,500,000 shares of common stock at a purchase price of $4.00 per share. The Company may hold one or more subsequent closings at any time prior to
February 28, 2020, unless otherwise extended, to sell the remaining shares in the private placement offering. The aggregate gross proceeds from the initial
closing of the Offering were $21.46 million (before deducting placement agent fees and expenses of the initial closing of the Offering, which are estimated
at $2.43 million).

Yaskawa Letter of Intent

        In February 2020, the Company entered into a letter of intent with Yaskawa that the Company believes will form the basis for a mutually beneficial
cooperation agreement between the Company and Yaskawa to be finalized later this year. This letter of intent contemplates the following:

• Yaskawa intends to enter into a long-term cooperation and development agreement with the Company to use our GaN power device products
for a variety of industrial power conversion applications, which will initially focus on servo motor drive applications.

• Yaskawa intends to provide at least $4 million to fund the Company’s development activities, with an expected funding start date of May
2020, from which amount Yaskawa intends to provide $1 million in 2020 in connection with ongoing development activities.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
Transphorm, Inc.

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Transphorm, Inc. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the related consolidated
statements of operations, comprehensive loss, stockholders’ deficit and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2018, and the related
notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its consolidated operations and its cash flows for
each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2018, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Explanatory Paragraph - Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As more fully described in
Note 1, the Company has a significant working capital deficiency, has incurred significant losses and needs to raise additional funds to meet its obligations and
sustain its operations. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans in regard to these
matters are also described in Note 1. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) ("PCAOB") and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB and in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over
financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and
performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ Marcum llp

Marcum llp

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2019.
Chicago, IL
February 13, 2020
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Transphorm, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands except share and per share data)
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,069  $ 9,973  
Accounts receivable, net, including related parties 280  —  
Inventory 852  183  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 624  1,020  

Total current assets 4,825  11,176  
Property and equipment, net 2,132  2,603  
Goodwill 1,306  1,277  
Intangible assets, net 1,958  2,587  
Other assets 278  294  

Total assets $ 10,499  $ 17,937  

Liabilities, convertible preferred stock and stockholders’ deficit
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 1,351  $ 1,560  
Promissory notes —  13,010  
Revolving credit facility, including accrued interest 10,346  —  
Deferred revenue 3,000  —  
Unfunded commitment to joint venture 659  98  
Accrued payroll and benefits 1,172  1,193  

Total current liabilities 16,528  15,861  
Promissory notes, net of current portion 15,852  14,746  

Total liabilities 32,380  30,607  
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)
Convertible preferred stock (Notes 1 and 12):

Series 1, $0.001 par value; 12,438,704 shares authorized and 12,433,953 shares issued and outstanding as
of December 31, 2018 and 2017 39,658  39,658  
Series 2, $0.001 par value; 7,507,699 shares authorized and 7,499,996 shares issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017 30,000  30,000  
Series 3, $0.001 par value; 4,000,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2018 16,000  —  

Total convertible preferred stock 85,658  69,658  
Stockholders’ deficit:

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 29,012,034 shares authorized and 4,219,606 shares issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 4  4  
Additional paid-in capital 21,829  21,244  
Accumulated deficit (128,632)  (102,834)  
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (740)  (742)  

Total Stockholders’ deficit (107,539)  (82,328)  

Total liabilities, convertible preferred stock and stockholders’ deficit $ 10,499  $ 17,937  

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Transphorm, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in thousands except share and per share data)
Year Ended December 31,

2018  2017  

Revenue, net $ 1,358  $ —  
Operating expenses:

Cost of goods sold 4,601  —  
Research and development 9,351  17,632  
Sales and marketing 3,626  5,835  
General and administrative 5,675  6,688  

Total operating expenses 23,253  30,155  

Loss from operations (21,895)  (30,155)  
Interest expense 710  697  
Loss in joint venture 2,404  1,324  
Changes in fair value of promissory notes 1,060  321  
Other income, net (271)  (275)  

Loss before tax expense (25,798)  (32,222)  
Tax expense —  —  

Net loss $ (25,798)  $ (32,222)  

Loss per share - basic and diluted $ (6.11)  $ (7.65)  
Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic and diluted 4,219,606  4,209,975  

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Transphorm, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss

(in thousands)
Year Ended December 31,

2018  2017  

Net loss $ (25,798)  $ (32,222)  
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Change in fair value on investment securities —  (87)  
Foreign currency translation adjustments 2  7  

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 2  (80)  

Comprehensive loss $ (25,796)  $ (32,302)  

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Transphorm, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficit

(in thousands except share data)

Common Stock
Additional

Paid-in Capital
Accumulated

Deficit

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
(Loss) Income

Stockholders’
DeficitNumber of Shares Amount

Balance at January 1, 2017 4,207,873  $ 4  $ 20,068  $ (70,612)  $ (662)  $ (51,202)  
Stock options exercised 11,733  —  48  —  —  48  
Stock-based compensation —  —  1,128  —  —  1,128  
Other comprehensive loss —  —  —  —  (80)  (80)  
Net loss —  —  —  (32,222)  —  (32,222)  

Balance at December 31, 2017 4,219,606  4  21,244  (102,834)  (742)  (82,328)  

Stock-based compensation —  —  585  —  —  585  
Other comprehensive income —  —  —  —  2  2  
Net loss —  —  —  (25,798)  —  (25,798)  

Balance at December 31, 2018 4,219,606  $ 4  $ 21,829  $ (128,632)  $ (740)  $ (107,539)  

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Transphorm, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2018  2017  
Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss $ (25,798)  $ (32,222)  
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:

Capitalized interest cost 346  —  
Depreciation and amortization 1,374  1,775  
Stock-based compensation 585  1,128  
Changes in fair value of promissory notes 1,060  321  
Loss on sale of investment securities —  (173)  
Loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipment 75  (12)  
Loss in joint venture 2,404  1,324  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (280)  64  
Inventory (669)  (183)  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 396  (233)  
Other assets 16  26  
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (173)  (1,314)  
Deferred revenue 3,000  —  
Accrued payroll and benefits (21)  (273)  

Net cash used in operating activities (17,685)  (29,772)  
Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property and equipment (332)  (259)  
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment —  119  
Maturities of investment securities —  20,500  
Investment in joint venture (1,852)  (1,225)  

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (2,184)  19,135  
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of Series 3 convertible preferred stock 16,000  —  
Proceeds from stock option exercises —  48  
Proceeds from issuance of revolving credit facility 10,000  —  
Proceeds from issuance of promissory note —  15,000  
Principal payments on debts (13,000)  —  

Net cash provided by financing activities 13,000  15,048  
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalent (35)  (98)  

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (6,904)  4,313  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 9,973  5,660  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 3,069  $ 9,973  

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest $ 328  $ 1,616  

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

7



Transphorm, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 - Business

        Transphorm, Inc. develops gallium nitride (“GaN”) semiconductor components used in power conversion. Transphorm was incorporated in the state of
Delaware on February 22, 2007. Transphorm, Inc’s activities to date have been primarily performing research and development, establishing manufacturing
infrastructure, market sampling, product launch, hiring personnel, and raising capital to support and expand these activities. Transphorm, Inc. is
headquartered in Goleta, California. Transphorm Japan, Inc. was established in February 2014 to secure Transphorm, Inc’s production capacity and
establish a direct presence in Asian markets. Transphorm, Inc., Transphorm Japan, Inc. and Transphorm Aizu, Inc. are collectively referred to
“Transphorm,” the “Company” or “our” in these notes.

Stock Conversion

        On February 12, 2020, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization (the “Merger Agreement”). See Note 18 -
Subsequent Events for more information. As a result of the Merger, the Company’s stock immediately prior to the closing of the Merger included herein
was retroactively restated for the effect of the stock conversion as follows:

• Series 1 convertible preferred stock: 51,700,000 shares authorized and 51,680,254 shares issued and outstanding were converted into
12,438,704 shares authorized and 12,433,953 shares issued and outstanding, respectively;

• Series 2 convertible preferred stock: 38,800,000 shares authorized and 38,760,190 shares issued and outstanding were converted into
7,507,699 shares authorized and 7,499,996 shares issued and outstanding, respectively;

• Series 3 convertible preferred stock: 31,850,304 shares authorized, issued and outstanding were converted into 4,000,000 shares authorized,
issued and outstanding; and

• Common stock: 350,000,000 shares authorized and 50,905,160 shares issued and outstanding were converted into 29,012,034 shares
authorized and 4,219,606 shares issued and outstanding, respectively.

        The stock conversion did not change the par value of our stock. Stock price per share was adjusted in proportion to the decrease in shares to maintain
equal value. In addition, stock options and stock warrants are reduced at 1 for 12.0639594 rate pursuant to the Merger Agreement and the reduced stock
options and stock warrants were retroactively restated for the effect of the stock conversion.

Going Concern

        The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As included in
the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Company has generated recurring losses from operations and has an accumulated deficit. These
factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for the next twelve months from the issuance of these
consolidated financial statements.

        Management plans to raise additional working capital to fund operations through the issuance of stock to investors, license of intellectual property
and/or issuance of notes payable. However, there is no assurance that the Company will be successful in raising additional capital.
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        The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is dependent on its ability to raise adequate capital to fund operating losses until it is able to
generate liquidity from its business operations. To the extent sufficient financing is not available, the Company may not be able to, or may be delayed in,
developing its offerings and meeting its obligations. The Company will continue to evaluate its projected expenditures relative to its available cash and to
evaluate financing alternatives in order to satisfy its working capital and other cash requirements. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do
not reflect any adjustments that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

        The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Transphorm, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Transphorm Japan, Inc. and
Transphorm Aizu, Inc. Upon consolidation, all intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

        The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Management bases its estimates and assumptions on historical experience, knowledge of current conditions, and its belief of what could occur in the future,
given available information. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and such differences could be material to the consolidated financial
statements. Estimates are used for, but not limited to, the determinations of fair value of stock awards and promissory notes, accrual of liabilities, revenue
recognition, inventory reserve, and useful lives for property and equipment.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

        The Company considers all highly-liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less at the date of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash
and cash equivalents consist principally of bank deposits and money market funds. Other assets in consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2018
and 2017 include restricted cash of $75 thousand.

Foreign Currency Risk

        The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk due to its operations in Japan. Assets and liabilities of the operations are re-measured into U.S.
currency at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet dates through the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. Gains or losses resulting from
foreign currency transactions are re-measured using the rates on the dates on which those elements are recognized during the period and are included in
other income or expense in the consolidated statements of operations. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company had foreign cash and cash
equivalents of $264 thousand and $371 thousand, respectively, which represent 8.6 percent and 3.7 percent, respectively, of total cash and cash equivalents.

Concentrations of Risk

        Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents. The
Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of default by the financial institution holding its cash. The Company’s investment policy restricts
investments to high-quality investments and limits the amounts invested with any one issuer, industry or geographic area. Risks associated with cash
holdings in excess of insured limits are mitigated by banking with high-quality institutions. To date, the Company has not experienced any significant
losses on its cash and cash equivalents. The Company periodically evaluates the relative credit standing of these financial institutions.

9



        The Company is subject to risks common in the power conversion components industry, including, but not limited to, technological obsolescence,
dependence on key personnel, market acceptance of its products, the successful protection of its proprietary technologies, compliance with government
regulations, and the possibility of not being able to obtain additional financing when needed.

Comprehensive Loss

        Comprehensive loss is comprised of net loss and other comprehensive income (loss). Other comprehensive income (loss) includes the impact of
foreign currency translation adjustments and unrealized gains or losses on investment securities classified as available for sale.

Accounts Receivable

        Accounts receivable are analyzed and allowances for uncollectible accounts are recorded, as required. Provisions for uncollectible accounts, if any, are
recorded as bad debt expense and included in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive loss. The process for determining the appropriate level of allowances for doubtful accounts involves judgment, and considers such factors
as the age of the underlying receivables, historical and projected collection trends, the composition of outstanding receivables, current economic conditions
and regulatory changes. An account is fully reserved when reasonable collection efforts have been unsuccessful and it is probable that the receivable will
not be recovered. No significant losses on accounts receivable have been recorded through December 31, 2018.

Inventory

        Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or net realizable value. The Company periodically reviews the value of items in
inventory and records write-downs or write-offs based on its assessment of slow moving or obsolete inventory. The Company maintains an inventory
reserve for obsolete inventory and generally makes inventory value adjustments against the inventory reserve.

Property and Equipment

        Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is determined using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, generally ranging from three to seven years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the related lease term. Depreciation for equipment commences once it is placed in service, and
depreciation for buildings and leasehold improvements commences once they are ready for their intended use. The Company expenses maintenance and
repair costs that do not extend the life of the asset as they are incurred.

        The Company evaluates the carrying amount of its property and equipment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the assets may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized when estimated future cash flows expected to result from the use of an asset or asset group
and its eventual disposition is less than the carrying amount of the asset or asset group. To date, there have been no such impairment losses.

Goodwill

        Goodwill arose for the acquisition of a business in February 2014 based in Japan and was accounted for as the purchase of a business. Goodwill
generated from business combinations and deemed to have indefinite lives are not subject to amortization and instead are tested for impairment at least
annually in December unless certain events occur or circumstances change. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the
net assets and other identifiable intangible assets acquired. We test for goodwill impairment annually or earlier if events or changes in circumstances
indicate goodwill might possibly be impaired. Impairment exists when the carrying value of the goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. An impairment
loss would be recognized in an amount equal to
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that excess as a charge to operations in the consolidated statements of operations. For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, no impairment charge
was recorded related to goodwill.

Intangible Assets

        Intangible assets that are not considered to have an indefinite useful life are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which generally range from
three to ten years. Each reporting period, the Company evaluates the estimated remaining useful lives of intangible assets and whether events or changes in
circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining periods of amortization.

        If it is determined that the carrying values might not be recoverable based upon the existence of one or more indicators of impairment, the Company
performs a test for recoverability using various methodologies, such as the income approach or cost approach, to determine the fair value of intangible
assets depending upon the nature of the assets. If assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured as the amount by which
the carrying amount of the assets exceeds their respective fair values. For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, no impairment charges were
recorded related to intangible assets.

Revenue Recognition

        Revenue Recognition Policy

        The Company derives its revenues from sales of high-powered GaN-based products manufactured utilizing their proprietary and patented epiwafer
technology and wafer fabrication and other assembly processes, and sales of GaN epiwafers for the RF and power markets, as well as sales of licenses to
use such patented proprietary technology. Revenues are recognized when control of these products or licenses are transferred to its customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those products and licenses. Sales and other taxes the Company
collects concurrent with revenue-producing activities are excluded from revenue. Incidental items that are immaterial in the context of the contract are
recognized as expense. The Company does not have any significant financing components associated with its revenue contracts, as payment is received at
or shortly after the point of sale.

        Disaggregation of Revenue from Contracts with Customers

        Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018 solely consists of product sales, with such performance obligation satisfied at a point in time. These
goods are sold to distributors and end-users in various sectors such as, but not limited to, the automotive, gaming, industrial, IT, and consumer products
industries.

        As part of the Collaboration Arrangement executed with Nexperia on April 4, 2018, the Company agreed to grant Nexperia the perpetual exclusive
right to use the Company’s existing Gen 3 manufacturing process technology, and the Gen 4 (Tranche A), Gen 5 (Tranche B), 1200V (Tranche B1) and
1200V technologies to be developed by the Company as part of the Collaboration Arrangement. License fees are received upon satisfaction of contractual
milestones. For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company did not recognize any revenue related to the process transfer or technology development
performance obligations. The $3.0 million contract liability related to cash received in 2018 from Nexperia is included in deferred revenue.

        Government contract revenues are principally generated under research and development contracts. Contract revenues are derived primarily from
research contracts with agencies of the United States Government. Credit risk related to accounts receivable arising from such contracts is considered
minimal. These contracts may include cost-plus and fixed price. All payments to us for work performed on contracts with agencies of the U.S. Government
are subject to adjustment upon audit by the Defense Contract Audit Agency.
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        Performance Obligations

        For performance obligations related to the sale of products, control transfers to the customer at a point in time. The Company’s principal terms of sale
are Free On Board Destination and the Company transfers control and records revenue for product sales upon shipment to the customer. For performance
obligations related to the licensing for the use of patented technology in perpetuity, control also transfers to the customer at a point in time. The Company
transfers control and records revenue for licensing fees once the Company has (i) provided or otherwise makes available the patented technology to the
customer and (ii) the customer is able to use and benefit from the patented technology.

        Variable Consideration

        The nature of the Company’s arrangement with Nexperia gives rise to variable consideration in the form of milestone and royalty payments. These
variable amounts are received upon satisfaction of contractually agreed upon development targets and sales volume, which has not been achieved as of
December 31, 2018. The royalties qualify for the sales and usage-based royalty exception, as the license of intellectual property is the predominant item to
which the royalty relates and are recognized upon the subsequent sale occurring.

Research and Development

        The Company is a party to research grant contracts with the U.S. federal government for which the Company is reimbursed for specified costs
incurred for its research projects. These projects include energy saving initiatives for which the U.S. federal government offers reimbursement funds. Such
reimbursements are recorded as an offset to research and development expenses when the related qualified research and development expenses are
incurred. Reimbursable costs are recognized in the same period the costs are incurred up to the limit of approved funding amounts on qualified expenses.
Grant reimbursements of $573 thousand were recorded as an offset to research and development expense for the years ended December 31, 2017.

        In connection with limited shipments of samples of the Company’s products to third parties during the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company
recorded income of $628 thousand as an offset to research and development expense.

Stock-Based Compensation

        All share-based payments, including grants of stock options, are measured based on the fair value of the share-based awards at the grant date and
recognized over their respective vesting periods, which is generally four years. The estimated fair value of stock options at the grant date is determined
using the Black-Scholes-Merton pricing model. The Company recognizes the fair value of share-based payments as compensation expense for all expected-
to-vest stock-based awards over the vesting period of the award using the straight-line attribution method provided that the amount of compensation cost
recognized at any date is no less than the portion of the grant-date fair value of the award that is vested at that date.

        The Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model requires inputs such as the fair value of common stock on date of grant, expected term, expected
volatility, dividend yield, and risk-free interest rate. Further, the forfeiture rate also affects the amount of aggregate compensation expense. These inputs are
subjective and generally require significant analysis and judgment to develop. Volatility data is obtained from a study of publicly traded industry peer
companies. The forfeiture rate is derived primarily from the Company’s historical data, and the risk-free interest rate is based on the yield available on
U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues commensurate with the expected term. Management generally uses the simplified method to calculate the expected term
for employee grants as the Company has limited historical exercise data or alternative information to reasonably estimate an expected term assumption. The
simplified method assumes that all options will be exercised midway between the weighted average vesting date and the contractual term of the option.
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        Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial statements is based on awards that are expected to vest. These
expense amounts have been reduced by using an estimated forfeiture rate. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The Company evaluates the assumptions used to estimate forfeitures annually in
connection of recognition of stock-based compensation expense.

Loss Per Share

        Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing net loss applicable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income attributable to common stockholders by the sum of the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus potential dilutive common shares outstanding during the period. Potential dilutive securities,
comprised of the convertible preferred stock, stock warrants and stock options, are not reflected in diluted net loss per share because such shares are anti–
dilutive. Dilutive impact of potential common shares resulting from common stock equivalents is determined by applying the treasury stock method.

        For the year ended December 31, 2018, there were 26,337,286 shares, consisting of 23,933,949 convertible preferred stocks, 26,157 stock warrants
and 2,377,180 stock options, that were not included in the computation of diluted loss per share because their effect would be anti-dilutive. For the year
ended December 31, 2017, there were 22,406,652 shares, consisting of 19,933,949 convertible preferred stocks, 36,866 stock warrants and 2,435,837 stock
options, that were not included in the computation of diluted loss per share because their effect would be anti-dilutive.

Fair Value Measurement

        Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The carrying values of the Company’s financial instruments such as cash equivalents, accounts receivable, revolving
credit facility, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate fair values due to the short-term nature of these items. The Company has elected the
fair value option for its promissory notes. See Note 4 - Fair Value Measurements for more information.

Income Taxes

        The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 740, Income Taxes (“ASC 740”). ASC 740
prescribes the use of the liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement carrying
amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted statutory tax rates in effect at the balance sheet date. The Company
records a valuation allowance to reduce its deferred tax assets when uncertainty regarding their realizability exists.

Equity Method Investments

        The Company uses the equity method to account for investments in entities that it does not control, but in which it has the ability to exercise
significant influence over operating and financial policies. The Company's proportionate share of the net income or loss of these companies is included in
consolidated net earnings. Judgments regarding the level of influence over each equity method investment include consideration of key factors such as the
Company's ownership interest, representation on the board of directors or other management body and participation in policy-making decisions.

Segment Reporting

        The Company’s operations and its financial performance is evaluated on a consolidated basis by the chief operating decision maker. Accordingly, the
Company considers all of its operations to be aggregated
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in one reportable operating segment. For the year ended December 31, 2018, total revenue was $1.4 million, of which $1.3 million was from U.S.
operations and $49 thousand was from Japan operations.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards Adopted

        In July 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-11, Earnings Per Shares (Topic 260), Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity (Topic 480) and Derivatives
and Hedging (Topic 815). ASU 2017-11 changes the classification analysis of certain equity-linked financial instruments, such as warrants and embedded
conversion features, such that a down round feature is disregarded when assessing whether the instrument is indexed to an entity’s own stock under
Subtopic 815-40. As a result, a down round feature no longer requires an instrument to be remeasured at fair value through earnings each period, although
all other aspects of the indexation guidance under Subtopic 815-40 continue to apply. ASU 2017-11 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within
those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company adopted this standard effective January 1, 2018. The adoption of ASU 2017-11did not
have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

        Revenue - In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Boards (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2014- 09, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The ASU and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced most existing revenue recognition guidance in
GAAP. The ASU also required expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers. The Company early adopted the new standard effective January 1, 2018, the first day of the Company’s fiscal year using the
modified retrospective approach.

        Stock Compensation - In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-09, Compensation -Stock Compensation (Topic 718) (“ASU 2017-09”), which
clarifies when changes to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award must be accounted for as modifications. ASU 2017-09 is effective for the
Company’s 2018 fiscal year, although early adoption is permitted. The Company adopted this standard effective January 1, 2018. The adoption of ASU
2017-09 did not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statement.s

        Goodwill Impairment - In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for
Goodwill Impairment (“ASU 2017-04”), which eliminates step two from the goodwill impairment test. Under the amendments in ASU 2017-04, an entity
should recognize an impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value; however, the loss recognized
should not exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. ASU 2017-04 is effective for the Company’s 2022 fiscal year on a
prospective basis, and earlier adoption is permitted for goodwill impairment tests performed on testing dates after January 1, 2017. The Company adopted
this standard as of January 1, 2018. The adoption of ASU 2017-04 did not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

        Stock Compensation - In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718) (“ASU 2016-09”), which
simplified certain aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions, including income taxes, classification of awards and classification in the
statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-09 will be effective for the Company beginning in fiscal year 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The Company adopted
this standard as of January 1, 2018. The adoption of ASU 2016-09 did not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements, and prior periods
were not restated.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards under Evaluation

        Fair Value - In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (ASC 820): Disclosure Framework-Changes to the Disclosure
Requirements for Fair Value Measurement. ASU 2018-13 removes certain disclosures, modifies certain disclosures and adds additional disclosures. ASU
2018-13 is effective for annual periods, including interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is
permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this new standard on its consolidated financial statements.
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        Statement of Cash Flows - In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows: Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and
Cash Payments (“ASU 2016-15”). This guidance addresses eight specific cash flow issues with the objective of reducing existing diversity in practice.
ASU 2016-15 is effective for the Company's 2020 fiscal year. The guidance is to be adopted retrospectively unless impracticable upon which the guidance
is to be adopted prospectively. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this new standard on its consolidated
financial statements.

        Financial Instruments - In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326), Measurement of Credit
Losses on Financial Instruments (“ASU 2016-13”). The standard changes the methodology for measuring credit losses on financial instruments and the
timing of when such losses are recorded. ASU 2016-13 is effective for the Company’s 2022 fiscal year. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of this new standard on its consolidated financial statements.

        Leases - In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, which, for operating leases, requires the lessee to recognize a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability, initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, on its balance sheet. The guidance also requires a lessee to recognize
single lease costs, calculated so that the cost of the lease is allocated over the lease term, on a generally straight-line basis. This guidance will be effective
for the Company in fiscal year 2021 and must be adopted using a modified retrospective transition approach. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of this new standard on its consolidated financial statements.

Note 3 - Nexperia Arrangement

Nexperia Transaction

        On April 4, 2018, the Company entered into a multi-element commercial arrangement with Nexperia to obtain financing in exchange for sale of equity
instruments and performing certain technology and product development activities for Nexperia (collectively, the “Collaboration Arrangement”). Nexperia
specializes in designing, manufacturing and selling a broad range of small discrete semiconductor devices that utilize components such as those
manufactured by the Company. Financing under the Collaboration Arrangement is comprised of the following elements:

• $16 million Series 3 preferred stock issuance

• $9 million license fee for transfer of the Gen 3 manufacturing process

• $5 million development loan maturing March 31, 2020 intended to pre-fund the Gen 4 (Tranche A) technology development (the “Tranche A
Loan”)

• $8 million development loan maturing March 31, 2021 intended to pre-fund the Gen 5 (Tranche B), 1200V (Tranche B1) technology
development (the “Tranche B Loan”)

• $2 million development loan maturing March 31, 2021 intended to pre-fund the 1200V technology development (the “Tranche B-1 Loan”)
(together with the Tranche A and Tranche B Loans, the “Development Loans”)

• $10 million revolving loan (the “Tranche C Loan”)

        The Company has to use the funds to operate the business in a manner consistent with or reasonably related to those business activities as carried out
on or prior to the Effective Date. In addition to the multiple elements outlined above, the Company and Nexperia entered into a Supply Agreement
requiring that the Company be Nexperia’s primary supplier of specified components until June 30, 2020 on a best efforts basis. By entering into this
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Collaboration Arrangement, Nexperia will gain access to technology that allows for production of high power semiconductors for use in electric vehicles.

        Further, Nexperia will obtain an exclusive license and market access to automotive customers outside of Japan and a sole license (non-exclusive of the
Company), as well as market access, to customers in other segments of the power market. Nexperia has a lien on certain US patents not relating to Metal
organic chemical vapor deposition (“MOCVD”) or epiwafer technology, per the agreement.

        On December 2018, the Company received $3 million, 1st of the three tranches in relation to the transfer of Gen 3 manufacturing process and recorded
it in deferred revenue as of December 31, 2018. The Company will recognize this revenue upon the completion and mutual sign off between Nexperia and
the Company.

        On March 31, 2019, the Company executed Amendment No. 1 to the Loan and Security Agreement (the “First Amendment to the LSA” or the
“Amendment”). Under this First Amendment to the LSA the Tranche B Loan is bifurcated into the following two separate sub-tranches:

• $8 million development loan intended to pre-fund the Gen 5 (Tranche B), 1200V (Tranche B1) (Ron/2) technology development (the
“Tranche B Loan”)

• $2 million development loan intended to pre-fund the 1200V technology development (the “Tranche B-1 Loan” and, together with the
Tranche B Loan, the “Tranche B Loans”)

        All other terms set forth under the original agreement remain unchanged and in full effect. The Tranche A and Tranche B Loans represent pre-funding
for Gen 4 (Tranche A), Gen 5 (Tranche B), 1200V (Tranche B1) and 1200V technology development for Nexperia. The specific development activities and
associated performance milestones are contained within a Statement of Work (“SoW”) between the Company and Nexperia. The SoW may be modified
from time to time based upon mutual business interests. This promise to perform the technology development is a good/service provided to a customer in
exchange for consideration in the form of the technology development license fees that offset the Tranche A and Tranche B Loans outstanding. The
Development Loans are within the scope of ASC 730-20, Research & Development Arrangements and are recognized as a liability equal to the cash
proceeds received. No cash has been received in relation to the above loans as of December 31, 2018.

        The Tranche C revolving loan of $10 million was received during the year ended December 31, 2018. See Note 9 - Debts for more information.

        The Company obtained a waiver for a non-financial covenant violation in June 2019 in connection with the delivery of the 2018 audited financial
statements.

Note 4 - Fair Value Measurements

        FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements as
follows:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs (other than quoted prices included within Level 1) that are observable, unadjusted quoted prices in markets that are not active, or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data of substantially the full term of the related assets or liabilities.

Level 3 - Inputs reflect management’s best estimate of what market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Inputs are unobservable for the asset or liability. Consideration is given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and the risk inherent in the
inputs to the model.
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        The categorization of a financial instrument within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. The following table summarizes the Company’s liabilities measured at fair value as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, by level within the fair
value hierarchy (in thousands):

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
December 31, 2018
Promissory note $ —  $ —  $ 15,852  

December 31, 2017
Promissory notes $ —  $ —  $ 27,756  

        The following table includes the changes in fair value of the promissory notes which are Level 3 on the fair value hierarchy (in thousands):

2018  2017  

Fair value at January 1, $ 27,756  $ 13,354  
Issuance of note —  15,000  
Interest expense accrued 364  697  
Principal and interest expense paid (13,328)  (1,616)  
Increase in fair value 1,060  321  

Fair value at December 31, $ 15,852  $ 27,756  

        There were no changes to our valuation techniques used to measure assets and liability fair values during the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
The valuation techniques for the items in the table above are as follows:

        Level 3 borrowings, which consist of promissory notes, are measured and reported at fair value using a Monte Carlo simulation valuation model. The
models can include assumptions related to the value of the notes that are based on the estimated timing and amounts of future rounds of financing,
including the estimated timing of a change in control of the Company, and estimated market interest rates, which represent significant unobservable inputs.
Assumptions used are 1) the Company is worth today what it can generate in future cash to the Company, 2) cash received today is more than an equal
amount of cash received in the future; and 3) future cash flows can be reasonably estimated.

Note 5 - Concentration of Credit Risk and Significant Customers

        The Company manages its credit risk associated with exposure to distributors and direct customers on outstanding accounts receivable through the
application of credit approvals and other monitoring procedures. Credit sales, which are mainly on credit terms of 30 to 60 days, are only made to
customers who meet the Company's credit standards, while sales to new customers or customers with low credit ratings are usually made on an advance
payment basis. The Company closely monitors the aging of accounts receivable from its distributors and direct customers, and regularly reviews their
financial positions, where available.

        Significant customers are those that represent 10% or more of revenue or accounts receivable and are set forth in the following:
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Revenue For the Year Ended
December 31, 2018

Accounts Receivable As of 
December 31, 2018

Customer A 44.0%  22.7%  
Customer B 17.6%  43.7%  
Customer C 16.0%  *  
Customer D *  19.3%  

* Less than 10% of total

        Customer B and C are related parties. See Note 17 - Related Party Transactions for more information.

Note 6 - Inventory

        Inventory consists of the following as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 (in thousands):

As of December 31,

2018 2017

Raw materials $ 258  $ 41  
Work in process 270  15  
Finished goods 324  127  

Total $ 852  $ 183  

        For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, no inventory write-off was recorded.

18



Note 7 - Property and Equipment

Property and equipment as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 consists of the following (in thousands except years):

As of December 31, Estimated 
Useful Life 
(in years)2018  2017  

Machinery and equipment $ 14,551  $ 14,645  5  
Computer equipment and software 787  915  3  
Furniture and fixtures 185  184  7  
Leasehold improvements (1) 4,952  5,142  7  
Construction in progress 263  4  

Property and equipment, gross 20,738  20,890  
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (18,606)  (18,287)  

Property and equipment, net $ 2,132  $ 2,603  

(1) Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the related remaining lease term.

        The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense related to property and equipment of $728 thousand, and $1.1 million for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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Note 8 - Intangible Assets

        The carrying values of intangible assets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, consists of the following (in thousands except years):

December 31, 2018

Gross
Accumulated
Amortization

Foreign Exchange
Rate Changes Net

Estimated Useful
Life 

(in years)

Patents $ 2,963  $ (1,383)  $ —  $ 1,580  10  
Developed technology - 150V 560  (425)  (41)  94  6  
Developed technology - 600V 1,701  (1,291)  (126)  284  6  

Total $ 5,224  $ (3,099)  $ (167)  $ 1,958  

December 31, 2017

Gross
Accumulated
Amortization

Foreign Exchange
Rate Changes Net

Estimated Useful
Life 

(in years)

Patents $ 2,963  $ (1,086)  $ —  $ 1,877  10  
Developed technology - 150V 560  (331)  (53)  176  6  
Developed technology - 600V 1,701  (1,005)  (162)  534  6  

Total $ 5,224  $ (2,422)  $ (215)  $ 2,587  

        The Company recorded amortization expenses related to intangible assets of $646 thousand and $659 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2018
and 2017, respectively.

        Estimated future amortization expenses related to intangible assets at December 31, 2018 were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31, Amount

2019  $ 645  
2020  325  
2021  296  
2022  296  
2023  296  
Thereafter 100  

Total $ 1,958  

Note 9 - Debts

Revolving Credit Facility

        On April 4, 2018, the Company entered into the Loan and Security Agreement with Nexperia comprised of a $10 million revolving loan (the “Tranche
C Loan”) maturing at the earlier of (i) the third anniversary of April 3, 2018, and (ii) the date a Change of Control (as defined in the Loan and Security
Agreement) occurs. Interest payable by the Company will accrue on the outstanding principal amount of the loans during such period at a rate of 6% per
annum. The credit facility is secured against certain of the our US patents not relating to MOVCD or epiwafer technology.
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        The Nexperia debt is recorded based on principal $10.0 million and accrued interest (6% interest per annum). The Company recorded interest expense
of $346 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2018, resulting in a total balance of $10.3 million as of December 31, 2018.

Promissory Notes 

        The Company’s promissory note obligations at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, consists of the following (in thousands):

Stated Value at December 31,

Interest Rate Due Date 2018  2017  

SCI Note 6.00%  October 2017 $ —  $ 10,031  
IIDA Note 1.00%  April 2018 —  3,083  
Yaskawa Note 1.00%  September 2022 15,186  15,036  

Total $ 15,186  $ 28,150  

        Pursuant to ASC 825-10-15-4, the Company elected to apply the fair value option for the promissory notes. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the
Company determined the fair value for each note, as compared to the face value, including accrued interest, as follows (in thousands):

Fair Value at December 31,

2018  2017  

SCI Note $ —  $ 9,977  
IIDA Note —  3,033  
Yaskawa Note 15,852  14,746  

Total $ 15,852  $ 27,756  

        The changes in fair value of $1.1 million and $321 thousand were recorded in changes in fair value of promissory notes in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

        Prior to January 1, 2016, the Company issued promissory notes to Semiconductor Components Industries, LLC, a semiconductor components
manufacturer (the SCI Note), for $10.0 million and to IIDA Electronics Co, Ltd., a Japanese electronics company (the IIDA Note) for $3.0 million. The
stated interest rate of the SCI Note is 6.0%, and principal plus interest was due on the earlier of October 2, 2017 or the occurrence of an Event of Default or
a Change of Control (both terms as defined). The stated interest rate of the IIDA Note is 1.0%, and principal plus interest is due on the earlier of April 1,
2018, or the date of the occurrence of an Event of Default or a Change of Control (both terms as defined). The IIDA Note was convertible at the option of
the holder into shares of common shares at an exercise price of $9.82380 per share. The SCI Note and IIDA Note do not have embedded conversion option
as they are accounted for at fair value. In April 2018, both the SCI Note and IIDA Note were paid in full, including accrued interest. The company obtained
waivers from both IIDA and Yaskawa in relation to the delayed repayment of the IIDA loan.

        In October 2017, the Company issued an unsecured subordinated convertible promissory note to Yaskawa Electric Corporation, (the Yaskawa Note),
for $15.0 million. The stated interest rate of the Yaskawa Note is 1.0%, and principal plus interest is due on the earlier of September 30, 2022, or the date of
the occurrence of an Event of Default, Change of Control or an Initial Public Offering (all terms as defined). The Yaskawa Note is convertible at the option
of the holder into shares of preferred stock upon the consummation of a preferred stock financing, whose aggregate gross proceeds are at least $10 million
(Qualified Financing), under the terms of such financing, with the following conversion price per share:
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a) upon the first Qualified Financing that occurs and prior to a second Qualified Financing, a price per share equal to the price per share paid by
the purchasers of the preferred stock and

b) each subsequent Qualified Financing, a price per share equal to eighty percent (80%) of the price paid by the purchasers of the preferred
stock, subject to a upper and lower limit of 250 million and $160 million estimated enterprise value, each, respectively, divided by the Fully
Diluted Capitalization, as defined, of the Company.

        In connection with its revolving credit facility and promissory note obligations, the Company recorded interest expense of $364 thousand and $697
thousand for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. In accordance with the terms of the promissory notes, interest is added to the
principal balance and is reflected in the carrying value on the consolidated balance sheet. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, accrued interest on the
promissory notes was $186 thousand and $150 thousand.

        As of December 31, 2018, the scheduled maturity on the revolving credit facility and promissory note was as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31, Amount

2019  $ 10,346  
2020  —  
2021  —  
2022  15,748  

Total $ 26,094  

Note 10 - Investment in Aizu Fujitsu Semiconductor Wafer Solution Limited (“AFSW”)

        On May 23, 2017, Transphorm acquired a 49% interest in AFSW for 1,000,000 Japanese Yen ($9,000 USD).  In connection with the transaction,
Transphorm entered into a Joint Venture Agreement (“JVA”) with the 51% owner, Aizu Fujitsu Semiconductor Limited, a subsidiary of Fujitsu
Semiconductor Limited. AFSW manufactures semiconductor products exclusively for its owners under manufacturing agreements at prices estimated to
cover the cost of production. In connection with the JVA, the Company seconded certain employees from AFSW and entered into a Manufacturing
Agreement with AFSW.  The JVA provides for certain put and call rights on February 1, 2020 and continue for 180 days thereafter. The 51% owner has the
right to put their interest to the Company and the Company can call the other owners interest in AFSW, in either case, for a price, based upon the greater of
a formula based upon the increase in net book value or 1 Yen. The Company expects that if either option were to be exercised the price would be 1
Japanese Yen. The JVA provided that the Company was responsible for the costs and expenses to procure the equipment for wafer processing if solely
required for the Company’s gallium nitride products.  The JVA provided for monthly payments during the term of the manufacturing agreement for
specified equipment and at the conclusion of the payments ownership will transfer to the Company.

        AFSW was determined to be a variable interest entity (“VIE”) as the equity at risk was not believed to be sufficient. AFSW depends on its owners for
any additional cash. In 2018 and 2017, the Company extended $1.9 million and $1.2 million, respectively, to AFSW to fund their operations. The
Company’s known maximum exposure to loss approximated the carrying value of our investment balance, which included the financing. Potential future
losses could be higher than the carrying amount of the Company’s investment, as they are liable, along with the other owner, for other future operating
costs or obligations of AFSW. In addition, because Transphorm is currently committed to purchasing our GaN wafers and production-related services, at
pre-agreed pricing based upon our second generation products, the Company may be required to purchase products at a higher cost for its newer generation
products. Unfunded commitment to AFSW was $0.7 million and $98 thousand as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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        The Company has determined that they do not have the characteristics of a primary beneficiary in the VIE, and therefore, account for our interest in
AFSW using the equity method of accounting.  On a quarterly basis the Company will reassess whether our interest in AFSW gives us a controlling
financial interest in AFSW. The purpose of this quarterly reassessment is to identify the primary beneficiary of AFSW. The Company determined that they
were not the primary beneficiary of the VIE, by virtue of shared non-controlling power with the other owner within AFSW’s Board of Directors, thereby
not having the power to direct the activities of AFSW that most significantly impact its economic performance.

        The Company’ investment activities in AFSW for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 are summarized below (in thousands):

2018  2017  

Beginning balance at January 1, $ (98)  $ —  
Investment 1,852  1,225  
Loss (2,404)  (1,324)  
Effect of exchange rate change (9)  1  

Ending balance at December 31, $ (659)  $ (98)  

        Summarized financial information of AFSW as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows (in thousands):

As of December 31,

2018  2017  

Current assets $ 4,096  $ 3,048  
Long-term assets 4,194  4,189  
Other current liabilities 961  622  
Due to controlling owner 12,031  8,607  
Due to Transphorm 2,960  688  

Net deficit $ (7,662)  $ (2,680)  

Year Ended December 31,
2018

Short Period From Inception
on May 23 to December 31,

2017

Sales $ 22,283  $ 8,640  
Gross loss $ (2,523)  $ (1,928)  
Net loss $ (4,906)  $ (2,701)  

Note 11 - Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

        The Company leases office and fabrication space in Goleta, California, and office spaces in San Jose, California and in Japan under noncancelable
operating lease agreements. The terms of certain leases provide for escalating rental payments through the term of the lease. The Company recognizes rent
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term and accrues for rent expense incurred but not paid.
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        As of December 31, 2018, future minimum operating lease commitments were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31, Amount

2019  $ 717  
2020  703  
2021  489  
2022  163  

Total $ 2,072  

        The Company recorded rent expense, net of rental income, which includes common area maintenance fees in addition to the base rent of $0.9 million
and $1.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Rental income from noncancelable sublease for the year ended
December 31, 2018 was $121 thousand. As of December 31, 2018, the future minimum rental payments to be received under the noncancelable sublease is
$397 thousand through February 2021.

Contingencies

        During the ordinary course of business, the Company may become a party to legal proceedings incidental to its business. The Company accrues
contingent liabilities when it is probable that future expenditures will be made and such expenditures can be reasonably estimable. Legal cost is expensed
as incurred. The company is not aware of any material legal claims or assessments, although the results of litigation and claims are inherently
unpredictable, management believes there was not at least a reasonable possibility that the Company had incurred a material loss with respect to such loss
contingencies as of December 31, 2018 and through date of this report.

Indemnification

        The Company from time to time enters into types of contracts that contingently require the Company to indemnify parties against third-party claims.
These contracts primarily relate to: 1) real estate leases, under which the Company may be required to indemnify property owners for environmental and
other liabilities and for other claims arising from the Company’s use of the applicable premises; 2) agreements with the Company’s officers, directors, and
employees, under which the Company may be required to indemnify such persons from liabilities arising out of their relationship; 3) indemnifying
customers in the event of product failure; and 4) agreements with outside parties that use the Company’s intellectual property, under which the Company
may indemnify for copyright or patent infringement related specifically to the use of such intellectual property.

        Historically, the Company has not been required to make payments under these obligations, and no liabilities have been recorded for these obligations
in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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Note 12 - Convertible Preferred Stock

        As of December 31, 2018, and 2017 the Company’s convertible preferred stock consists of the following (in thousands, except share and per share
amounts):

December 31, 2018 Authorized Shares Outstanding Shares Carrying Value Par Value per Share Preference Value

Series 1 12,438,704  12,433,953  $ 39,658  $ 0.001  $ 40,000  
Series 2 7,507,699  7,499,996  30,000  $ 0.001  30,000  
Series 3 4,000,000  4,000,000  16,000  $ 0.001  16,000  

23,946,403  23,933,949  $ 85,658  $ 86,000  

December 31, 2017 Authorized Shares Outstanding Shares Carrying Value Par Value per Share Preference Value

Series 1 12,438,704  12,433,953  $ 39,658  $ 0.001  $ 40,000  
Series 2 7,507,699  7,499,996  30,000  $ 0.001  30,000  

19,946,403  19,933,949  $ 69,658  $ 70,000  

        Series 1 and 2 Preferred Stock

        KKR Phorm Investors L.P. (KKR) purchased 12,433,953 shares of Series 1 preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share, at a per share price of $3.217
for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $40 million. KKR and other investors with a small percentage (~0.02%) purchased 7,499,996 shares of
Series 2 preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share, at a per share price of $4.00 for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $30 million.

        Series 3 Preferred Stock

        On March 26, 2018, the Company entered into a stock purchase agreement and related contracts in order to effectuate the issuance of its Series 3
preferred stock to Nexperia. Pursuant to the terms of the stock purchase agreement, Nexperia purchased 4,000,000 shares of Series 3 preferred stock, par
value $0.001 per share, at a per share price of $4.00, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $16 million equating to a total ownership stake of
approximately 9.9% on a fully-diluted basis. The Company has reserved shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, for issuance upon conversion
of the Series 3 preferred stock (the conversion shares). The Series 3 preferred stock issued is substantially pari passu with the Company’s Series 1 and
Series 2 preferred stock previously issued to KKR with a small percentage (~0.02%) issued to other investors.

        Each share of Series 1, Series 2 and Series 3 preferred stock are convertible at the option of the holder into such number of shares of common stock as
is determined by dividing the original issue price (OIP) of the Series 1, Series 2 and Series 3 preferred stock by the conversion price in effect at the time of
the conversion. The conversion price of the Series 1, Series 2 and Series 3 preferred stock is subject to adjustment for certain events. Each share of Series 1,
Series 2 and Series 3 preferred stock automatically converts into common stock immediately upon the closing of an underwritten public offering of the
Company’s common stock in which the aggregate net proceeds are at least $40 million and the offering price per share is not less than 1.5 times the OIP of
the Series 1, Series 2 and Series 3 preferred stock (a Qualifying Public Offering).

        The rights, privileges, and preferences of the Series 1, Series 2, and Series 3 convertible preferred stock are as follows:

        Liquidation Rights - In the event of any liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Company, either voluntary or involuntary, the holders of
convertible preferred stock will be entitled to receive, prior and in preference to any distribution of any assets of the Company to the holders of common
stock, an amount per share equal to $3.217 per share for Series 1, $4.00 per share for Series 2 and $4.00 per share for Series 3, plus any
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declared but unpaid dividends. If, upon the occurrence of such an event, the assets and funds thus distributed among the holders of the convertible preferred
stock are insufficient to permit the payment of the preferential amounts, the entire assets and funds legally available for distribution will be distributed
ratably among the holders of convertible preferred stock in proportion to the full amount to which they would otherwise be respectively entitled. If, upon
satisfaction of the convertible preferred stock preferences, there are any remaining assets and funds available for distribution, they will be ratably
distributed among the holders of common stock.

        Conversion - The convertible preferred stock is convertible at the option of the holder at any time into common stock on a one-for-one basis, subject to
certain adjustments for anti-dilution. Each share of convertible preferred stock automatically converts into common stock in the event of an initial public
offering (IPO) in which the proceeds are at least $40,000,000, net of the underwriting discount and commissions, and the offering price per share is not less
than 1.5 times the original issue price of the convertible preferred stock.

        Dividends - The holders of convertible preferred stock are entitled to receive, out of funds legally available, cash dividends at the rate of $0.25736 per
annum for Series 1, $0.32 per annum for Series 2 and $0.32 per annum for Series 3 on each outstanding share. Such dividends are payable when, as, and if
declared by the Board of Directors and are noncumulative. Through December 31, 2018 no such dividends have been declared.

        Voting - The holders of Series 1 convertible preferred stock shall be entitled to the number of votes equal to ten times the number of shares of common
stock into which such shares could be converted, and the holders of Series 2 convertible preferred stock shall be entitled to the number of votes equal to the
number of shares of common stock into which such shares could be converted. Each holder of Series 3 preferred stock shall be entitled to the number of
votes equal to ten times the number of shares of common stock into which the shares of Series 3 preferred stock held by such holder could be converted as
of the record date.

Due to certain provisions in liquidation and conversion rights the company has presented the convertible preferred stock outside of stockholders deficit as
mezzanine equity.

Note 13 - Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock

        In March 2018, the Company amended the Certificate of Incorporation, to increase the number of authorized shares of common stock from 24,867,458
to a new total of 29,012,034 shares of $0.001 par value common stock. Common stockholders are entitled to dividends, as and when declared by the Board
of Directors, subject to the priority dividend rights of the holders of other classes of stock. There have been no dividends declared to date. The holder of
each share of common stock is entitled to one vote.

        At December 31, 2018, the Company has reserved shares of common stock for future issuance as follows:

Conversion of convertible preferred stock 23,946,403  
Stock option plans 4,025,218  
Common stock warrants 26,157  

Total 27,997,778  
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Common Stock Warrants

        At December 31, 2018, the following warrants to purchase common stock were outstanding:

Number of Shares Exercise Price Expiration Date

10,696  $18.699  April 2019
6,046  $34.732  November 2020
6,046  $34.732  February 2025
3,369  $54.408  February 2025

26,157  

Note 14 - Stock Option Plans

        In 2007, the Board of Directors adopted the 2007 Stock Option Plan (the 2007 Plan). The 2007 Plan provides for the granting of incentive and
nonstatutory stock options to employees, officers, directors and consultants of the Company. Stock options are generally granted with terms of up to
10 years and with a strike price equal to or greater than the fair value on the date of grant, as determined by the Board of Directors. The 2007 Plan provides
for standard vesting of stock options of 25% after 12 months and 1/36th of the remaining balance monthly. Effective June 2015, no additional grants were
available under the 2007 Plan. As of December 31, 2018, 213,017 shares were issued and outstanding under the 2007 plan.

        In June 2015, the Board of Directors adopted the 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (the 2015 Plan). The 2015 Plan provides for the granting of incentive and
nonstatutory stock options to purchase the Company’s common stock, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and restricted stock units to employees,
directors and consultants of the Company. Under the terms of the 2015 Plan, stock options and stock appreciation rights may be granted with terms of up to
ten years at exercise prices of no less than 100% of the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the grant date. As of December 31, 2018,
2,164,163 shares were issued and outstanding under the 2015 plan.

        The following table summarizes stock option activity under the 2007 Plan and 2015 Plan and related information:

Number of Shares
Available for Grant

Number of Options
Outstanding

Weighted Average
Exercise Price per

Share

Weighted Average
Remaining

Contractual Term
(in Years)

Aggregate Intrinsic
Value

Balance at January 1, 2017 1,354,381  2,682,570  $ 4.83  9.37 $ —  
Options granted (37,749)  37,749  $ 4.34  
Options exercised —  (11,733)  $ 4.22  
Options canceled 272,749  (272,749)  $ 5.07  

Balance at December 31, 2017 1,589,381  2,435,837  $ 4.80  8.38  $ —  
Options granted (46,005)  46,005  $ 4.34  
Options canceled 104,662  (104,662)  $ 4.70  

Balance at December 31, 2018 1,648,038  2,377,180  $ 4.79  7.46  $ —  

Exercisable at December 31, 2018 1,741,165  $ 5.07  7.28  $ —  

        Stock-based compensation expense is determined based on the fair value of the Company’s common stock as determined by the Board of Directors
and assumptions such as volatility, expected term, risk-free interest rates,
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and other factors. Changes in the deemed fair value of the common stock, the underlying assumptions in the calculations, the number of options granted or
the terms of such options, the expected forfeiture rate, the treatment of tax benefits and other changes may result in significant differences in the amounts or
timing of the compensation expense recognized. The assumptions and estimates are made as follows:

• Fair Value of Common Stock - The fair value of the shares of common stock underlying the stock options has been determined by the Board
of Directors, utilizing valuation studies performed by third-party advisors. Because there has been no public market for the Company’s
common stock, the Board of Directors has determined fair value of the common stock at the time of grant of the options by considering a
number of objective and subjective factors, including valuations of comparable companies, sales of convertible preferred stock to unrelated
third parties, operating and financial performance, the lack of liquidity of capital stock, and general and industry-specific economic outlook.
The Company has not granted stock options with an exercise price that is less than the fair value of the underlying common stock as
determined at the time of grant by the Board of Directors.

• Expected Volatility - The Company utilizes the historical volatility of representative public companies to determine its expected volatility, as
there is no public trading of the Company’s common stock.

• Estimated Forfeitures - The Company adopted ASU 2016-09, Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee
Share-Based Payment Accounting and has elected to account for forfeitures as they occur and therefore, stock-based compensation expense
for the year ended December 31, 2018 has been calculated based on actual forfeitures in the statements of operations, rather than our previous
approach which was net of estimated forfeitures. The net cumulative effect of this change was not material.

• Expected Dividend Yield - The Company has not issued any common stock dividends; therefore, a dividend yield of zero was used.

• Risk-Free Interest Rate - The Company bases the risk-free interest rate used in the Black- Scholes-Merton option pricing model on the
implied yield currently available on United States Treasury zero-coupon issues with an equivalent expected term.

• Expected Term - The expected term of stock options represents the period that the Company’s stock options are expected to be outstanding.
The Company generally uses the simplified method to calculate the expected term for employee grants.

        The assumptions used to value options granted to employees during the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2018  2017  

Weighted average expected life (in years) 5.84  6.02  
Risk-free interest rate 2.51% - 2.52% 1.82% - 2.01%
Expected volatility 38.1% - 38.2% 38.9% - 40.7%
Weighted average grant date fair value $0.84  $1.81  
Dividend yield —%  —%  

        As of December 31, 2018, there was $846 thousand of unrecognized stock-based compensation cost related to stock options granted to employees
under the 2007 Plan and the 2015 Plan. The unrecognized compensation cost is expected to be recognized over an estimated weighted average amortization
period of 1.76 years.
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        The accompanying consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss includes stock-based compensation expense as follows (in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2018  2017  

Cost of revenue $ 41  $ —  
Research and development 186  259  
Sales and marketing 45  223  
General and administrative 313  646  

Total $ 585  $ 1,128  

Note 15 - 401(k) Savings Plan

        The Company has a 401(k) savings plan (the 401(k) plan). The 401(k) plan is a defined contribution plan intended to qualify under Section 401(k) of
the Internal Revenue Code. All full-time employees of the Company are eligible to participate pursuant to the terms of the 401(k) plan. Contributions by
the Company are discretionary, and the Company made no contributions during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Note 16 - Income Taxes

        For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company reported a worldwide consolidated pre-tax loss of $25.8 million, which consisted of a pre-tax
loss from U.S. operations of approximately $22.1 million, pre-tax loss from Transphorm Japan, Inc. operations of approximately $1.3 million and a pre-tax
loss from Transphorm Aizu, Inc. operations of approximately $2.4 million. For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company reported a worldwide
consolidated pre-tax loss of $32.2 million, which consisted of a pre-tax loss from U.S. operations of approximately $29.6 million, a pre-tax loss from
Transphorm Japan, Inc. operations of approximately $1.3 million and a pre-tax loss from Transphorm Aizu, Inc. operations of $1.3 million .

        There is no U.S. federal or foreign provision for income taxes because the Company has incurred operating losses since inception and is in a full
valuation allowance position. For the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company has recorded a state income tax provision of $1 thousand
which represents minimum taxes. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of the net operating losses and the temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.
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        Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as follows (in thousands):

As of December 31,

2018  2017  
Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards $ 42,181  $ 36,256  
Tax credits 3,808  3,090  
California capitalized research and development 290  459  
Depreciation 153  270  
Others, net 272  262  

Total deferred tax assets 46,704  40,337  
Valuation allowance (46,703)  (40,337)  

Deferred tax asset, net of valuation allowance 1  —  
Deferred tax liabilities:

Others, net (1)  —  

Total deferred tax liabilities (1)  —  

Net deferred tax assets $ —  $ —  

        As of December 31, 2018, and 2017, the Company had no assurance that future taxable income would be sufficient to fully utilize the net operating
loss carryforwards and other deferred tax assets in the future. Consequently, the Company determined that a valuation allowance of approximately $46.7
million and $40.3 million as of December 31, 2018, and 2017, was needed to offset the deferred tax assets resulting mainly from the net operating loss
carryforwards.

        The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal and California jurisdictions and is subject to U.S. federal, state, and local income tax
examinations by tax authorities. Generally, the statute of limitations is 3 years for U.S. federal income tax and 4 years for state and local taxes. The statute
of limitations may be extended for tax years where a corporation has a net operating loss carryforward or by agreement with the jurisdictional taxing
authority. Accordingly, all of the Company's U.S. federal, state and local income tax years since inception remain open to examination by tax authorities.
The Company is not currently under audit by any taxing authority.

        The Company follows the provisions of uncertain tax positions as addressed in ASC 740-10. The Company recognized no increase or decrease in the
liability for unrecognized tax benefits for any period presented. The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest
expense and penalties in operating expenses. No such interest or penalties were recognized during the period presented. The Company had no accruals for
interest and penalties at December 31, 2018, and 2017.

        The utilization of the Company’s net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards is dependent on the future profitability of the Company. Further, the
Internal Revenue Code imposes substantial restrictions on the utilization of such carryforwards in the event of an ownership change of more than 50%, as
defined, during any three-year period (Section 382 and 383 limitations). The Company has determined that several ownership changes have occurred,
which have resulted in substantial limitations on the Company’s ability to utilize its pre-ownership change net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.
These substantial limitations are expected to result in both a permanent loss of certain tax benefits related to net operating loss carryforwards and federal
research and development credits, as well as an annual utilization limitation. The company plans to perform a study of its available NOL‘s that are subject
to section 382 and 383 limitations to determine its expected utilization period.

        As of December 31, 2018, the Company has federal net operating loss carryforwards of $227.6 million, of which $207.6 million will begin to expire in
2027 unless previously utilized, and the Company has state net operating loss carryforwards of $149.9 million which will begin to expire in 2021 unless
previously utilized. The
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Company also has foreign net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $4.1 million which will begin to expire in 2024. The federal net operating loss
generated for the year ended 2018 of $20.0 million can be carried forward indefinitely. However, the federal deduction for net operating losses incurred in
tax years beginning after January 1, 2018 is limited to 80% of annual taxable income. The state net operating loss generated for the year ended 2018 of
$15.3 million can be carried forward 20 years.

        As of December 31, 2018, the Company has federal research and development credit carryforwards of $3.7 million, which will begin to expire in 2032
unless previously utilized, and the Company had California research and development credit carryforwards of $3.0 million, which do not expire.

        Deferred tax assets have not been established for net operating and tax credit carryforwards that are deemed to have no value due to the Section 382
and 383 limitations discussed above and, therefore, are not reflected in the table of deferred tax assets presented above. Future ownership changes, if any,
may further limit the Company’s ability to utilize its remaining net operating losses and tax credit carryforwards.

        Reconciliation between federal statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate is shown in the following table:

Year Ended December 31,

2018 2017

Federal statutory income tax rate 21.00%  34.00%  
Research and development credit 1.61%  1.58%  
Nondeductible expenses (1.81)%  (1.64)%  
Loss in joint venture (1.99)%  (1.40)%  
Foreign income tax rate difference (1.04)%  (1.37)%  
Others, net 0.02%  0.09%  
Federal tax rate change —%  (54.39)%  
Valuation allowance (17.79)%  23.13%  

Effective tax rate —%  —%  

        On December 22, 2017, the U.S. Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Reform Act”) was signed into law. The Tax Reform Act significantly revised the
U.S. corporate income tax regime by, among other things, lowering the U.S. corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% effective January 1, 2018, while also
repealing the deduction for domestic production activities, implementing a territorial tax system and imposing a repatriation tax on deemed repatriated
earnings of foreign subsidiaries. At December 31, 2017, the Company has completed its accounting for the tax effects of enactment of the Tax Act. As a
result of the Tax Reform Act, the Company reduced its deferred tax assets by $17.5 million which was offset by a corresponding reduction in the valuation
allowance of the same amount resulting in net impact of zero on income tax expense due to a remeasurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the
year ended December 31, 2017. The Deemed Repatriation Transition Tax (“Transition Tax”) is a tax on previously untaxed accumulated and current
earnings and profits of our foreign subsidiary. To determine the amount of the Transition Tax, the Company must determine, in addition to other factors, the
amount of post-1986 earnings and profits of the relevant subsidiary, as well as the amount of non-U.S. income taxes paid on such earnings. The Company
has determined that it will not owe a Transition Tax since it has deficit for our foreign subsidiary that are subject to the tax
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Note 17 - Related Party Transactions

        During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company entered into the following related party transactions:

• Recorded $751 thousand in cost of goods sold for services, incurred expenses of $560 thousand for research and development activities, and
incurred $175 thousand for employees and their related benefits seconded from the joint venture with AFSW;

• Sold $269 thousand of products to non-controlling common stockholders of the Company and incurred $200 thousand of license maintenance
fee from a non-controlling common stockholder of the Company;

• Incurred $71 thousand for employees and their related benefits seconded from a common stockholder of the Company; and

• Sold $37 thousand of products to common stockholders and former noteholders of the Company.

• Recorded $3.0 million in deferred license fee and sold $166 thousand of products to a convertible preferred stockholder of the Company.

        As of December 31, 2018, total accounts receivable from related parties was $3.1 million, consisting of $3.0 million from the joint venture with
AFSW, $123 thousand from non-controlling common stockholders of the Company, $10 thousand from non-controlling common stockholder and
noteholder of the Company and $54 thousand from a convertible preferred stockholder and noteholder of the Company. As of December 31, 2018, total
accounts payable to related parties was $122 thousand to non-controlling common stockholders of the Company.

        During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company entered into the following related party transactions:

• Purchased $2.7 million of research and development services from non-controlling common stockholders of the Company;

• Leased $43 thousand of office space from a non-controlling common stockholder of the Company;

• Incurred $651 thousand for employees and their related benefits seconded from a non-controlling common stockholder of the Company;

• Shipped $237 thousand of product samples to non-controlling common stockholders of the Company and incurred $200 thousand of license
maintenance fee from a non-controlling common stockholder of the Company; and

• Shipped $51 thousand of product samples to and purchased $5 thousand of goods from non-controlling common stockholders and noteholders
of the Company.

        As of December 31, 2017, total due from related parties was $0.7 million, consisting of $0.7 million from the joint venture with AFSW, $22 thousand
from common stockholders of the Company and $6 thousand from non-controlling common stockholders and noteholders of the Company. As of
December 31, 2017, total due to related parties was $219 thousand to non-controlling common stockholders of the Company. 

        The services provided to the Company were recorded as research and development expenses, the office space leased was recorded to rent expense and
the shipment of product samples were recorded as an offset to research and development expenses.
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Note 18 - Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through February 13, 2020, and determined that there have been no events that have occurred that
would require adjustments to its disclosures in the consolidated financial statements except for the following:

Navy Contract

        In 2018 the Company was awarded a base contract with a value of $2.6 million with an option with the US Navy (the “Navy”contract). The option
portion of the Navy contract went into effect as of June 6, 2019. The value of the option portion of the Navy Contract is $15.9 million, bringing the total
value of the Navy Contract to $18.5 million. The length of the Navy Contract is three years. The award is in relation to the development of Nitrogen-Polar
and Gallium-Polar GaN on various substrates for multiple end applications.

Extension of Lease

        The Company has extended its lease on the 75 Castilian location for three years starting June 30, 2019. Total lease commitment with an annual 3
percent increase for three years is $950 thousand. The extended lease is included in future minimum operating lease commitments in Note 11 -
Commitment and Contingencies.

Nexperia Arrangement 

        During 2019, the Company received $21.0 million from Nexperia consisting of $6 million under the Gen 3 manufacturing process transfer and $15.0
million for the Tranches A, B and B-1 loans. See Note 3 - Nexperia Arrangement.

Merger Agreement 

        On February 12, 2020, Peninsula Acquisition Corporation, Acquisition Sub and Transphorm Technology entered into an Agreement and Plan of
Merger and Reorganization (the “Merger Agreement”). Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, on February 12, 2020, Acquisition Sub merged
with and into Transphorm Technology, with Transphorm Technology continuing as the surviving corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Peninsula
Acquisition Corporation. The Merger was treated as a recapitalization and reverse acquisition for financial reporting purposes. Transphorm Technology is
considered the acquirer for accounting purposes. Immediately after completion of the merger, Peninsula Acquisition Corporation adopted Transphorm
Technology’s former company name, Transphorm, Inc. as its company name.

Private Placement 

        Following the Merger, the Company sold 5,365,000 shares of common stock pursuant to an initial closing of a private placement offering for up to
12,500,000 shares of common stock at a purchase price of $4.00 per share. The Company may hold one or more subsequent closings at any time prior to
February 28, 2020, unless otherwise extended, to sell the remaining shares in the private placement offering. The aggregate gross proceeds from the initial
closing of the Offering were $21.46 million (before deducting placement agent fees and expenses of the initial closing of the Offering, which are estimated
at $2.43 million).

Yaskawa Letter of Intent 

        In February, 2020, the Company entered into a letter of intent with Yaskawa that the Company believes will form the basis for a mutually beneficial
cooperation agreement between the Company and Yaskawa to be finalized later this year. This letter of intent contemplates the following:
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• Yaskawa intends to enter into a long-term cooperation and development agreement with the Company to use our GaN power device products
for a variety of industrial power conversion applications, which will initially focus on servo motor drive applications.

• Yaskawa intends to provide at least $4.0 million to fund the Company’s development activities, with an expected funding start date of May
2020, from which amount Yaskawa intends to provide $1.0 million in 2020 in connection with ongoing development activities.
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